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REBOWE & COMPANY CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS CONSULTANTS A PROFESSIONAL CORPORATION 3501 N. Causeway Blvd. ~ Suite 810 ~ RO, Box 6952 ~ MelaJne LA 70009 Phone (504) 837-9116 ~ Fax (504) 837-0123 ~ E-mail rebowe@rebowe.com 
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

To the Honorable President and Members of the Council ST. JOHN THE BAPTIST PARISH COUNCIL LaPlace, Louisiana 
We have audited the accompanying primary government ~'mancial statements of the ST. JOHN THE BAPTIST PARISH COUNCIL (the Parish), as of and for the year ended December 31, 1997, as listed in the table of contents. These primary government financial statements are the responsibility of the management of the Parish. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the primary government financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall primary government financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion. A primary government is a legal entity or body politic and includes all funds, organizations, institutions, agencies, departments, and offices that are not legally separate. Such legally separate entities are refcrred to as component units. In our opinion, the primary government financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the primary government of the ST. JOHN THE BAPTIST PARISH COUNCIL as of December 31, 1997, and the results of its operations and cash flows of its proprietary fund types for the year then ended in conformity with general accepted accounting principles. 



To the Honorable President and Members of the Council Page Two 
However, the primary government financial statements, because they do not include the financial data of component units of the ST. JOHN TI~ BAPTIST PARISH COUNCIL do not purport to, and do not, present fairly the financial position of the ST. JOHN THE BAPTIST PARISH COUNCIL as of December 31, 1997, and the results of its operations and cash flows of its proprietary fund types for the year then ended in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles. In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued a report dated May 8, 1998, on our consideration of the ST. JOHN THE BAPTIST PARISH COUNCIL'S internal control over financial reporting and our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grants. Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the primary government financial statements of the ST. JoHN TIIE BAPTIST PARISH COUNCIL taken as a whole. The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awa~ ds is presented for purposes of additional analysis as required by U.S. Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations, and is not a required part of the financial statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements, and in our opinion, is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the financial statements taken as a whole. Also, the supplemental information listed in the table of contents is presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part of the basic financial statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and, in our opinion, is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the primary government financial statements taken as a whole. 

May 8, 1998 



St. John the Baptist Parish Council LaPlace, Louisiana 
Combined Balance Sheet All Fund Types and Account Groups December 31, 1997 

Assets and Other Debits Assets Cash and cash equivalents Investments Receivables, net Due from other funds Other receivables Inventory Due from other governments Other assets Restricted assets Land, buildings, and equipment (net, where applicable, of accumulated depreciation) Other debits Amount available in debt service funds Amount to be provided for retirement of general long-term obligations Total Assets and Other Debits 

Governmental Fund Types General Fund Special Revenue Funds 
$ 1,314,994 4,338,160 1,068,464 2,525,851 16,019 398,414 16,897 30,587 47,329 

$ 1,148,709 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement. 

170,525 

Debt Service Funds 
$ 1,068,560 3,061,136 1,782,049 

Capital Projects Funds 
$ 300,305 1,200,311 10,797 

$ 8,778,531 $ 5,911,745 $ 1,511,413 



Proprietary Fund Type 
Enterprise Funds 
$ 692,303 404,828 1,642,929 363,077 99,645 118,294 136,925 2,809,871 
55,932,788 

lntemaI Service Funds 
8,542 545,189 

Fiduciary 
Agency Funds 
$ 37,403 286,466 199,929 

Account Groups General Fixed Assets 

18,372,725 

General Long-term Obligations 
Total (Memorandum Only) 
$ 3,422,107 9,836,090 7,230,019 777,510 147,129 118,294 217,854 136,925 2,809,871 
74,305,513 5,911,219 5,911,219 34,092,785 34,092,785 

$62,200,660 $ 553,731 $ 523,798 $18,372,725 $ 40,004,004 $ 139,005,316 



Liabilities, Equity, and Other Credits Liabilities Accounts and salaries payable Cash overdraft Contracts payable Due to other funds Due to other govemmants Payable from restricted assets Other liabilities Capital leases payable Loans payable Bonds payable Total liabilities Fund equity and other credits Contributed capital Investment in general fixed assets Retained earnings: Reserved Unreserved Fund balance: Reserved Unreserved 

St. John the Baptist Parish Council LaPlace, Louisiana Combined Balance Sheet (Continued) All Fund Types and Account Groups December 31, 1997 

Total fund equity and other credits Total Liabilities, Equity, and Other Credits 

Governmental Fund Types General Fund 
192,552 114,640 
125,000 110,683 
350,000 
892,875 

255,834 
255,834 $ 1,148,709 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement, 

Special Revenue Funds 
153,220 $ 19,962 21,402 42,610 313,233 
550,427 

8,228,104 
8,228,104 

Debt Service Funds 

528 
528 

5,911,217 
5,911,217 

Capital Pr~e~s Funds 
$ 508,492 143,799 

652,291 

859,122 
859,122 

$ 8,778,531 $ 5,911,745 $ 1,511,413 



Fund T Enterprise Funds 
$ 594,047 $ 
777,001 1,099,728 10.000 6,129 5,201,000 7,687,905 
46,101,049 
1,274,147 7,137,559 
54,512,755 

Internal Service Funds 

47,500 506,231 
553,731 

$ 62,200,660 $ 553,731 

Fiduciary 
Agency Funds 
$ 286,466 
235,175 
2,157 
523.798 

$ 523,798 

Account Groups 

$ 

General Fixed Assets 

18,372,725 

18,372,725 

General Long-term Obligations 

904,504 10,500 39,089,000 
40,004,004 

Total (Memorandum Only) 
$ 1,734,777 114,640 163,761 1,158,578 153,293 1,099,728 325,918 904,504 366,629 44,290,000 
50,311,828 
46,101,049 18,372,725 
1,321,647 7,643,790 6,770,339 8,483,938 
88,693,488 $18,372,725 $ 40,004,004 $ 139,005,316 



Revenues Taxes: Ad valorem Sales and use Other taxes and penalties Licenses and permits Intergovernmental revenues: Federal grants State funds: Parish transportation State revenue sharing Other Fees, charges, and commissions Fines and forfeitures Interest income Other revenue Total Revenues Expenditures General government: Legislative Judicial Executive Elections Finance and administration Civil service Building and plant Planning and zoning Public safety Public works Health and welfare Economic development Transportation Debt service Total Expenditures 

St. John the Baptist Parish Council LaPlace, Louisiana Governmental Fund Types Combined Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances For the Year Ended December 31,1997 
Governmental Fund Tvpc~ General Fund 

805,166 $ 
722,665 
174,000 318,575 172,666 30,935 11,512 63.912 2,299,431 
195,306 466,688 412,267 61,038 23,743 939,524 107325 342,281 548,000 
58,630 $ 3,154,902 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement. 

Special Revenue Funds 
1,196,046 $ 8,677,245 1,106 27,077 538,409 42,705 321,624 310,282 644,099 277,672 367,191 

876,897 
35,443 
1,265,776 541,848 244,104 2,470,226 555,233 

Debt Service Funds 
1,855,491 $ 

260,551 
2,116,042 

11,340 

5,309,162 $ 5,989,527 $ 5,320,502 

Capital Projects Funds 

127.111 

3,028,734 
3,028,734 

Total (Memorandum Only) 
3,856,703 8,677,245 723,771 27.077 538,409 216,705 640,199 482,948 675,034 676,846 431.103 16,946,040 
195,306 1,343,585 412,267 61,038 46,783 23,743 939,524 107,425 1,608,057 3,028,734 1,089,848 244,104 2,470,226 5,923,025 



SL John the Baptist Parish Council LaPlace, Louisiana Governmental Fund Types Combined Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Flmd Balances (Continued) For the Year Ended December 31,1997 

General Fund 
Governmental Fund Typos Special Debt Revenue Service Funds Funds Capital Projects Funds Total (Memorandum Only) 

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over Expenditures $ (855,471) $ 6,413,929 $ (3,204,460) $ (2,901 62gl $ (547,625) Other Financing Sources CLlses) Proceeds of debt issued Sale of fixed assets Operating transfers in Operating transfers out 1,035,289 (195,160) 124,279 644,071 3,494,387 300,000 (5,473,682) (120,188) TotalOtherFinandngSou~es (Uses) 840,129 (4,705,332) 3,374,199 Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues and Other Sources Over Expenditures and Other Uses Fund Balances, Beginning of Year Residual Equity Transfer 
(15,342) 207,528 1,7o8,597 6,582,994 

124,279 5,473,747 (5,789,030) 
169,739 (2,6Ol,623) (738,629) 5,741,478 3,460,906 15,992,9o6 (161) Fund Balances, End of Year $ 255,834 $ 8,228,104 $ 5,911,217 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement, 

$ 859.122 



St. John the Baptist Parish Council LaPlace, Louisiana Governmental Fund Types Combined Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances Budget (GAAP) Basis and Actual For the Year Ended December 31, 1997 

Revenues Taxes: Ad valorem Sales and use Other taxes and penalties Licenses and permits Intergovvmmental revenues: Federal grants State funds: Parish transportation State revenue sharing Other Fees, charges, and commissions Fines and forfeitures Interest income Other revenue Total Revenues Expenditures General government: Legislative Judicial Executive Elections Finance and administration Civil service Building and plant Planning and zoning Public safety Publio works Health and welfare Economic development Transportation Debt service Total Expenditures 

General Fund 
Budget Actual Variance Favorable Unla~olable) 
$ 788,100 $ 805,166 17,066 
701,800 
174,400 353,000 159,703 31,000 11,200 49,000 2,268,203 
206,184 456,492 412,368 50,000 24,742 871,437 128,865 306,647 543,915 
$ 3,000,650 

722,665 20,865 
! 74,000 318,575 172,666 30,935 11,512 63,912 2,299,431 
195,306 466,688 412,267 61,038 23,743 939,524 107,425 342,281 548,000 
58,630 

(400) (34,425) 12,963 (65) 312 14,912 31,228 
0,878 0,196) 101 1,038) 999 (68,087) 21,440 (35,634) (4,085) 
(58,630) $ 3,154,902 $ (154,252) 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement. 

Soecial Revenue Funds 
$1,182,000 7,655,531 
7,000 22,000 516,000 42,812 246,766 317,704 640,000 232,720 352,199 11,214,732 
928,678 

Actual 
$1,196,046 8,677,245 
1,106 27,077 538,409 42,705 321,624 310,282 644,099 277,672 367,191 12,403,456 
876,897 
35,443 

1,547,908 1,265,776 549,517 447,428 2,664,228 352,173 
541,848 244,104 2,470,226 555,233 

Variance Favorable (Onfavomble) 
$ 14,046 1,021,714 (5,894) 5,077 22,409 (107) 74,858 (7,422) 4,099 44,952 14.992 1,188,724 
51,781 
(35,443) 
282,132 7,669 203,324 194,002 (203,060) $ 6,489,932 $ 5,989,527 $ 500,405 



St. John the Baptist Parish Council LaPlace, Louisiana Governmental Fund Types Combined Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances (Continued) Budget (GAAP) Basis and Actual For the Year Ended December 31, 1997 
General Fund 
Actual Vaxiance Favorable (Unfavorable) 

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over Expenditures $ (732,447) $ (855,471) $ (123,024) 
Other Financing Sources (Uses) Proceeds of debt issued Sale of fixed assets Operating transfers in Operating transfers out Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues and Other Sources Over Expenditures and Other Uses Fund Balances, Beginning of Year 
Residual Equity Transfer 

Special Revenue Funds 
$ 4.724,800 

Variance Favorable Actual (~ll~a, orablc 
$ 1.689.129 

124,279 124,279 1,035,407 1,035,289 (118) 658,500 644,071 (14,429) (267,407) (195,160) 72,247 (5,679,048) (5,473,682) 205,366 
768 0o0 84(} 129 
35,553 207,528 57.779 Fund Balances, End of Year $ 300,860 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement. 

(15,342) 207,528 63.648 $ 255,834 

72,129 (4,896,269) (4,705,332) 
(50,895) 
5,869 

190.937 
(171,469) 1,708,597 1,880,066 6,432,261 6,582,994 (63,487) $ (45,026) $ 6,260,792 $ 8,228,104 

150.733 (63 487 $ 1,967,M2 



St. John the Baptist Parish Council LaPlace, Louisiaua Proprietary Fund Types Combined Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Retained Earnings For the Year Ended December 31, 1997 

Revenues Sales Taxes Other fees, charges, and commissions Other income Total Revenues Operating Expenses Gas and water distribution Sewer collection Solid waste Mosquito abatement Insurance Total Operating Expenses Operating Income (Loss) Nonoperating Income (Expense) Interest income Interest expense Amortization of bond disconnt Operating transfers in Operating transfers out Other Net Nonoperating Income (Expense) 
Net Income (Loss) Amortization of Contributed Capital Increase in reserved retained earnings 

Proprietary Funds Enterprise Funds $ 4,239,463 70,401 4,434,599 214,160 8,958,623 
4,066,309 4,071,629 1,510,S72 293,466 
9,942,276 

Internal Service Funds Total 
353 353 

1,204 

4,239,463 70,401 4,434,599 214,513 8,958,976 
4,066,309 4,071,629 1,510,872 293,466 1,204 9,943,480 

157,694 (338,695) (11,292) 1,006,500 (117,471) 8,670 705,406 (278,247) 1,542,957 
Retained Earnings, Beginning of Year 7,146,996 

27,420 
26,440 (75,000) 
(21,991) 
47,500 575,722 

185,114 (338,695) (11,292) 1,032,940 (192,471) 8,670 684,266 (300,238) 1,542,957 47,500 7,722,718 Reserved Retained Earnings, End of Year 1,274,147 47,500 1,321,647 Unreserved Retained Earnings, End of Year $ 7,137,559 $ 506,231 
The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement. 11 

$ 7,643,790 



St. John the Baptist Parish Council LaPlace, Louisiana Proprietary Fund Types Combined Statement of Cash Flows For the Year Ended December 31, 1997 
Funds Enterprise Funds Cash Flows From Operating Activities Operating income (loss) $ Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss) to net cash provided by operating activities: Depreciation Changes in assets and liabilities: Accounts receivable Other receivables Due from other funds Due from other governments Inventory Accounts and salaries payable Due to other funds Due to other governments Accrued expenses Deposits payable Interest payable Other payables Net cash provided (used) by operating activities Cash Flows From Noncapital Financing Activities Operating a'ansfers in Operating transfers out Net cash provided (used) by noncapital financing activities Cash Flows From Capital and Related Financing Activities Changes in other assets Proceeds from bond issue 

Internal Service Funds Total 
(983,653) $ (851) $ (984,504) 
2,031,726 (558,204) (4,657) 425~61 
1,095 (160) 33,473 
64,119 (1,267) 10,000 
1,018,233 
1,006,500 (117,471) 

655 

26,440 (75,000) 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement. 12 

9,875 

2,031,726 (558,204) (4,002) 425,761 1,095 (160) 33,473 
64,119 (1,267) lO,O00 
1,018,037 
1,032,940 (192,471) 
840.469 
9,875 



St. John the Baptist Parish Council LaPlace, Louisiana Proprietary Fund Types Combined Statement of Cash Flows (Continued) For the Year Ended December 31, 1997 
Proprietary Funds Enterprise Fund> Cash Flows From Capital and Related Financing Activities (Continued) Acquisition of capital assets $ Gain from sale of fixed assets Contributed capital Repayment of loans payable Amortization of bond debt expense and bond discount Bonds payable Principal payments Interest payments Net cash provided (used) by capital and related financing activities Cash Flows From Investing Activities Interest income Sale of investment securities Purchase of investment securities Net cash provided (used) by investing activities Netlncrease(Decrease)in Cash Cash and Cash Equivalents, Beginning of Year Cash and Cash Equivalents, End of Year 

Reconciliation to Balance Sheet 

(3,370,140) 8,670 2,921,902 (9,746) (11,292) (271,000) (338,695) 
(1,060,426) 
157,694 9,243,338 (10,217,016) 
(815,984) 

Internal Service Funds Total 

27,420 1,763,399 (1,749,435) 
41,384 

(3,370,140) 8,670 2,921,902 (9,746) (11,292) (271,000) (338,695) 
(1,060,426) 
185,114 11,006,737 (11,966,451) 
(774,600) 30,852 (7,372) 23,480 

1,016,976 15,914 1,032,890 1,047,828 $ 8,542 $ 1,056,370 
Cash and cash equivalents $ Cash and cash equivalents, restricted 
Total cash and cash equivalents 

692,303 355,525 
1,047,828 The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement. 



ST. JOHN THE BAPTIST PARISH COUNCIL LaPlace, Louisiana NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS December 31, 1997 
NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICES The financial statements of the Parish of St. John the Baptist have been prepared in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) as applied to governmental units. The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the accepted standard-setting body for establishing govermnental accounting and fmancial reporting principles. The more significant of the Parish's accoantmg policies are described below. A. REPORTING ENTITY The ST. JOHN THE BAPTIST PARISH COUNCIL (the Council) is the goveming authority for the Parish of St. John the Baptist, a political subdivision of the State of Louisiana as authorized by the State Constitution. The Council consists of nine members, two of whom are elected fi'om two divisions of the Parish consisting of 50% of the Parish's population and seven members elected to represent each of the seven districts. The Parish President, elected by the voters of the Parish, is the chief executive officer of the Parish and is responsible for carrying out the policies adopted by the Council and for the administration of all Parish departments, offices, agencies and special districts. Louisiana Revised Statutes, at LSA-R.S. 33:1236, give the Council various powers in regulating and dirccling the affairs of the Parish and its inhabitants. The more notable of these are the power to make regulations for its own government; to regulate the construction and maintenance of roads, bridges, and its drainage system; to regulate the sale of alcoholic beverages; and to provide for the health and welfare of the poor, disadvantaged, and unemployed in the Parish. Funding to accomplish these tasks is provided by ad valorem taxes, sales taxes, beer and alcoholic beverage permits, state revenue sharing, and various state and federal grants. St. John the Baptist Parish occupies 351 square miles wath a population of approximately 42,000. Council offices are located in the parish office building at 1801 West Airline Highway, LaPlace. As the governing authority of the Parish, for fmancial reporting purposes, the ST. JOHN THE BAPTIST PARISH COUNCIL is the reporting entity for St. John the Baptist Parish. The financial reporting entity consists of (a) the primary government (Council), (b) organizations for which the primary government is financial accountable, and (c) other organizations for whieh the nature and significance of their relationship with the primary ~ovemment are such that exclusion would cause the reporting entity's financial statements to be misleading or incomplete. 

14 



ST. JOHN THE BAPTIST PARISH COUNCIL LaPlace, Louisiana NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS December 31, 1997 
NOTE I - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICES (CONTINUED) Government Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 14 established criteria for determining which component units should be considered part of the ST, JOHN THE BAPTIST PARISH COUNCIL for financial reporting purposes. The basic criterion for including a potential component unit within the reporting entity is financial accountability. The GASB has set forth the following criteria to be considered in determining financial accountability: 1. Organizations for which the Council appoints a voting majority of the governing body and: a. The ability of the Council to impose its will on that o~antzation or b. The potential for the organization to provide specific financial benefits to or impose specific financial burdens on the Council. - 2. Organizations for which the Council does not appoint a voting majority but which are fiscally dependent on the Council, 3. Organizations for which the repomng entity financial statements would be misleading if data for the organization is not included because of the nature or significance of the relationship. Based on the above criteria, the Council has determined that the following component units are part of the reporting entity: 
Component Urm ._ Council on Aging Community Action Agency Library Public Housing Authority Assessor Clerk of Court 

F~scal Year End June 30 June 30 December 31 September 30 December 31 June 30 

Criteria Used 2 1 .a.b. 1.a.b. 1.a. 2 2 The Council has elected to issue financial statements of the primary government (Council) only; therefore, none of the previously listed component units are included in the accompanying financial statements. However, these component units are required to submit annual financial statements to the State of Louisiana Leguslative Auditor. 



ST. JOHN THE BAPTIST PARISH COUNCIL LaPlace, Louisiana NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS December 31, 1997 
NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) The primary government (Council) financial statements include all funds, account groups, and organizations for which the Council maintains the accounting records. The organizations for which the Council maintains the accounting records are considered part of the primary government for financial reporting purposes. GASB Statement 14 provides for the issuance of primary government financial statements that are separate from those of the reporting entity. However, the primary government's (Council) financial statements are not a substitute for the reporting entity's financial statements. The accompanying primary government financial statements have been prepared in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles as apphed to government units. These financial statements are not intended to and do not report on the reporting entity but rather are intended to reflect only the financial statements of the primary government. B. FUND ACCOUNTING The Council uses funds and account groups to report on its financial position and the results of its operat,onq Fund accounting is designed to demonstrate legal compliance and to aid financial management by segregating transactions relating to certain government functions or activities. A fund is a separate accounting entity with a self-balancing set of accounts, An account group is a financial reporting device designed to provide accountability for certain assets and liabilities that are not recorded in the funds because they do not directly affect net expendable available financial resources. Funds of the Council are classified into three categones: governmental, proprietary, and fiduciary. In turn, each category is divided into separate fund types. The fund classifications and a description of each existing fired type follow: 
GeneralFund- The General Fund is the general operating fund of the Council. It accounts for all financial resources except those iequtred to be accounted for in other funds. Special Revenue Funds - Funds used to account for the proceeds of specific revenue sources that are legally restricted to expenditures for specified purposes are reported as special revenue funds. 

16 



ST. JOHN THE BAPTIST PARISH COUNCIL LaPlace, Louisiana NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS December 31, 1997 
NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) Debt Service Funds - Debt service funds account for the accumulation of resources for, and the payment of, general long-term debt principal, interest, and related costs. Capital Projects Funds - Capital projects funds account for financial resources to be used for the acquisition, construction, or improvement of capital facilities other than those reported in enterprise flmds. 
Enterprise Funds - Enterprise funds account for operations (a) that are financed and operated in a manner similar to private business enterprises where the intent of the governing body is that the costs (expenses, including depreciation) of providing goods or services to the general pubfic on a continuing basis be financed or recovered primarily through user charges; or (b) where the governing body has decided that determination of revenues earned, expenses incurred, and/or net income is appropriate for capital maintenance, pubfic poficy, management control, accountability, or other purposes. Internal Service Funds - Internal service funds account for the financing of goods or services pro~Sded by one department to other departments or governments on a cost- reimbursement basis. 
Fiduciary_ Funds Agency Funds - Agency funds are used to account for assets held by the Parish Council on behalf of others as their agent. Agency funds are custodial in nature (assets equal liabilities) and do not involve measurement of results of operations. 
General Fixed Assets Account Group - The general fixed assets account group is used to account for fixed assets not accounted for in proprietary or trust funds. General Long-Term Debt Account Group - The general long-term debt account group is used to account for general long-term debt and certain other liabilities that are not specific liabilities of proprietary or trust funds. The two account groups are not funds. They are concerned only with the measurement of financial position, not with results of operations. 

17 



ST. JOHN THE BAPTIST PARISH COUNCIL LaPlace, Louisiana NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS December 31, 1997 
NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) C. BASIS OF ACCOUNTING The accounting and financial reporting treatment applied to a fund is determined by its measurement focus. 
All governmental funds are accounted for using a current financial resources measurement focus. With this measurement focus, only current assets and current liabilities are generally included on the balance sheet. Operating statements of these funds present increases (revenues and other financing sources) and decreases (expenditures and other financing uses) in net current assets. The modified accrual basis of accounting is used by all governmental fund types and agency funds. Under this method revenues are recognized when susceptible to accrual (when they become both measurable and av~alable), "Measurable" means the amount of the transaction can be determined and "av~ulable" means collectible within the current period or soon enough thereafter to be used to pay the liabilities of the current period. The Parish considers ad valorem taxes revenue in the year for which they are levied. Expenditures are recorded when the related fund liability is incurred, except for sick and vacation leave, which are recorded when paid. Principal and interest on general long-term debt are recorded as fund liabilities when due. Those revenues considered susceptible to accrual are sales and use tax revenues, federal and state grants, and certain franchise fees. Sales taxes are recognized when collected by vendors. Interest on time deposits is recorded when earned. Substantially all other revenues are recorded when received. Transfers between funds which are not expected to be repmd are accounted for as other financing sources (uses) and are recorded at the time of transfer Bank loans are recognized when the loan is authorized. Indirect cost reimbursements are the amounts the General Fund charges to several other funds based on the level of services provided to these funds by the General Fund. The Parish reports deferred revenue on its combined balance sheet. Deferred revenues arise when a potential revenue does not meet both the measurable and available criteria for recognition in the current period. Deferred revenues also arise when resources are received by the Parish before it has a legal claim to them, as when grant monies are received prior to the incurrence of qualifying expenditures. In subsequent periods, when 
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ST. JOHN THE BAPTIST PARISH COUNCIL LaPlace, Louisiana NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS December 31, 1997 
NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) both revenue recognition criteria are met, or when the Parish has a legal claim to the resources, the fiability for deferred revenue is removed from the combined balance sheet and revenue is recognized. 
Propnetary Funds All proprietary funds are accounted for on a flow of economic resources measurement focus. With this measurement focus, all assets and all liabilities associated with the operation of these funds are included on the balance sheet Fund equity (net total assets) is segregated into contributed capital and retained earnings components. Proprietary fund- type operating statements present increases (revenues) and decreases (expenses) in net total assets. The proprietary funds are maintained on the accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized when earned, and expenses are recognized at the time liabilities are incurred. Unbilled enterprise fund service receivables are recorded as fund assets at year end. D. BUDGETARY ACCOUNTING Parish budgets are prepared and reported on the same basis of accounting as the financial statements. The General Fund, Special Revenue Funds, and Enterprise Funds are the only funds for which budgets are legally adopted by the Council. Budgets for the General and Special Revenue Funds are adopted on the modified accrual basis of accounting. Enterprise Fund budgets are adopted on the accrual basis of accounting. Other funds are administratively budgeted for management use only. All unexpended budgetary appropriations lapse at year end Additional details on the budgetary process may be found at Note 2. E. ENCUMBRANCES The Council does not use an encumbrance accounting system. F. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND INVESTMENTS Cash includes cash on hand, demand deposits, interest-bearing demand deposits, and money market accounts. Cash equivalents include amounts in time deposits and those investments 



ST. JOHN THE BAPTIST PARISH COUNCIL LaPlace, Louisiana NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS December 31, 1997 
NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) with original maturities of 90 days or less. For purposes of the statement of cash flows, the enterprise funds consider these same items to be cash. Loulstana Revised Statutes, at LSA-K.S. 33:2955, authorize the Council to invest in (1) direct obllganons of the United States Treasury, the principal and interest of which are fully guaranteed by the federal government; (2) bonds, debentures, notes, or other evidence of indebtedness issued or guaranteed by federal agencies or U.S. Government instrumentalities; (3) direct security repurchase agreements of any federal book-entry-only securities; (4) time certificates of deposit of state banks organized under the laws of Louisiana and national banks having their principal offices in the State of Louisiana, savings accounts or shares of savings and loan associations; (5) in mutual or trust fund institutions which are registered with the SecuntJes and Exchange Commission under the Securities Act of 1933 and the Investment Act of 1940, and which have underlying investments consisting solely of and limited to securities of the U.S. Govemment or its agencies; or (6) guaranteed investment contracts issued by a bank, financial institution, insurance company, or other entity having one of the two highest short- term rating categories of either Standard & Poor's Corporation or Moody's Investors Service, provided that no such investment may be made except in connection with a financing program approved by the State Bond Commission. Cash and cash equivalents are stated at cost, which approximates market. Under state law, these deposits must be secured by federal deposit insurance or the pledge of securities owned by the bank. The market value of the pledged securities plus the federal deposit insurance must at all times equal or exceed the amount on deposit with the bank. Investments consist of U.S. Treasury Bills with original maturities of one year or less, and are stated at amortized cost, except for investments in the Deferred Compensation Agency Fund, which are reported at market value. 
G. SHORT-TERM INTERFUND RECEIVABLES/PAYABLES During the course of operations, numerous transactions occur between individual funds for goods provided or services rendered. These receivables and payables are classified as due fl-om other funds or due to other funds on the balance sheet. Short-term interfund loans are classified as interfund receivables/payables. H. ADVANCES TO OTHER FUNDS Noncurrent portions of long-term interfund loan receivables are reported as advances and are offset equally by a fund balance reserve account, which indicates that they do not constitute expendable avmlahle financial resources and, therefore, are not available for appropriation. 



ST. JOHN THE BAPTIST PARISH COUNCIL LaPlace, Louisiana NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS December 31, 1997 
NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 
I. INVENTORIES The cost of materials and supplies acquired by the governmental funds are recorded as expenditures at the time of consumption. Proprietary fund type inventories are stated at the lower of cost or market, determined by the first-in, first-out method. 
J. PREPAID ITEMS Certain payments to vendors reflect costs applicable to future accounting periods and are recorded as prepaid items. 
Certain proceeds of enterprise fund revenue bonds, as well as certain resources set aside for their repayment, are classtfied as restricted assets on the balance sheet because their use is limited by the governing bond covenants. Additionally, customer deposits held by the Gas and Water Enterprise Fund are restricted for use in paying outstanding bills when customers discontinue service. 
L. FIXED ASSETS 
General Fixed Assets Fixed assets used in governmental fund type operations (general fixed assets) are accounted for in the general fixed assets account group, rather than in the governmental funds. Assets in the general fixed assets account group are not depreciated. All purchased fixed assets are valued at cost where historical records are available and at estimated historical cost where no historical records exist. Donated fixed assets are valued at their estimated fair market value on the date donated, The costs of maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of assets or materially extend asset lives are not capitalized, but improvements that add to the value of assets are capitalized. Public domain (infrastructure) general fixed assets consisting of roads, bridges, curbs and gutters, and streets and sidewalks are not capitalized, as these assets are immovable and of value only to the government. 
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ST. JOHN THE BAPTIST PARISH COUNCIL LaPlace, Louisiana NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS December 31, 1997 
NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 
Fixed assets used in the proprietary fund operations (enterprise funds) are included on the balance sheet of the funds at cost where historical records are available and at estimated historical cost where no historical records exist, net of accumulated depreciation. Depreciation of all exhaustible fixed assets used by proprietary fund operations is charged as an expense against operations. Depreciation is computed using the straight-line method over the useful lives of the assets ranging from 5 to 40 years. Interest expense incurred during the construction phase of proprietary fund fixed assets is reflected in the capitalized value of the asset constructed, net of interest earned on the invested proceeds over the same period. The costs of maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of assets or materially extend asset lives are not capitalized. Improvements that add to the value of assets are capitalized and depreciated over the remaining useful lives of the fixed assets. Fixed assets acquired through capital contributions are capitalized. Depreciation expense applicable to these contnbutcd assets is closed out to the related contributed capital accounts rather than retained earnings. This method is considered preferable under the matching concept wherein acquisition of these fixed assets is recorded as an addition to contributed capital. M. COMPENSATED ABSENCES The Council has the following policy relating to vacation and sick leave 
Employees earn from 5 to 20 days of vacation leave each year, depending on their length of service. Vacation leave must be taken in the year earned and cannot be accumulated. Also, employees earn 6 to 18 days of sick leave per year which can be accumulated and is paid only upon retirement. The accumulation of sick leave is nominal at December 31, 1997, therefore, a liability for compensated absences due employees has not been included in the combined financial statements. The cost of current privileges, computed in accordance with GASB Codification Section C60, is recognized as a current-year expenditure in the governmental funds when leave is actually taken. The cost of leave privileges not requiring current resources is recorded in the general long-term obligations account group. Leave privileges associated with employees of the proprietary funds are recorded as a fund liability and operating expenses. 



ST. JOHN THE BAPTIST PARISH COUNCIL LaPlace, Louisiana NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS December 31, 1997 
NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) N. LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS 
Long-term obligations expected to be financed from governmental funds are reported in the general long-term obligations account group. Expenditures for principal and interest payments for long-term obligations are recognized in the governmental funds when due. Long-term obligations expected to be financed from proprietary fund operations are accounted for in those funds. O. FUND EQUITY Contributed Capital Contributed capital is recorded in proprietary funds that have received capital grants or contributions from developers, customers, or other funds when such resources are restricted for the acquisition or construction of capital assets. Contributed capital is amortized based on the depreciation recognized on that portion of the assets acquired or constructed from such resources. 
Reserves Reserves represent those portions of fund equity not appropriable for expenditure or legally segregated for a specific future use. 
Designated fund balances represent tentative plans for future use of financial resources. P. INTERFUND TRANSACTIONS Quasi-external transactions are accounted for as revenues, expenditures, or expenses. Transactions that constitute reimbursements to a fund for expenditures/expenses initially made from it that are properly applicable to another fund are recorded as expenditures/expenses in the reimbursing fund and as reductions of expenditures/expenses in the fired that is reimbursed. All other interfund transactions, except quasi-external transactions and reimbursements, are reported as transfers. Nonrecurring or nonroutine permanent transfers of equity are reported as residual equity transfers. All other interfund transfers are reported as operating transfers. Q. SALES TAXES Sales taxes are collected by the St. John the Baptist Parish School Board, a separate entity, for a fee equal to 50% of actual collection expenchmres. 



ST. JOHN THE BAPTIST PARISH COUNCIL LaPlace, Louisiana NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS December 31, 1997 
NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) R. TOTAL COLUMNS ON COMBINED STATEMENTS Total columns on the combined statements are captioned Memorandum Only to indicate that they are presented only to facilitate financial analysis. Data is these columns do not present financial position, results of operations, or changes in financial position in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles. Neither is such data comparable to a consolidation. Interfund eliminations have not been made in the aggregauon of this data. 
NOTE 2 - STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE, AND ACCOUNTABILITY Budget The procedures used by the Parish in establishing the budgetary data reflected in the financial statements are as follows: (1). At least sixty (60) days before the beginning of the fiscal year, the President submits a line item operating budget and a capital budget in accordance with accepted accounting procedure in a format estabhshed by the Parish Council. The budget submitted shall be balanced. The President submits with the budget a message containing recommendations concerning the fiscal policy of the Parish, a description of the important features of the budget, and an explanation of all major increases or decreases in budget recommendations as compared with expenditures of the prior year. (2), The Parish Council publishes the proposed budget in the official journal two (2) weeks before the meeting at which the budget is to be adopted. The budget as adopted constitutes an appropriation of fimds for all purposes contained therein. A budget ordinance becomes effective the first day of the fiscal year, unless otherwise provided 
(3). The Parish Council may amend the budgets before adoption except that no items for debt service may be reduced below the amount certified by the President as necessary. In no event should the Parish Council cause the total expenditures to exceed anticipated revenue. If the Parish Council fails to act on either budget within the time limit provided, it shall be adopted as submitted by the President. Fund Balances - Deficit The Woodland Sewerage Construction Capital Projects fund had a deficit fund balance of $4,558 at December 31, 1997. Subsequent to year-end, sufficient funds were transferred into the fund to eliminate this deficit. 



ST. JOHN THE BAPTIST PARISH COUNCIL LaPlace, Louisiana NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS December 31, 1997 
NOTE 2 - STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE, AND ACCOUNTABILITY (CONTINUED) Fund Balances - Actual and Budoet The following individual funds had actual fund balances below budgeted fund balances by 5% or more at December 31, 1997: 

Fund General Fund Criminal Court 
Budget $ 300,860 4,242 Actual $ 255,834 2,727 

Unfavorable Variance $ (45,026) (1,515) Total ~__ 305,J_02 ~__~  $_~_46~;41) 
NOTE 3 - AD VALOREM TAX Ad valorem tax on real property is levied as of November 15th of each year. The tax becomes an enforceable lien on the property on the first day of the month following the filing of the tax rolls by the Assessor with the Louisiana Tax Commission (usually December 1~). The tax bills are mailed by the Sheriff s Office in early December and are due upon receipt. The taxes become delinquent on January 1~ in the year after levy. The property taxes are levied on property values determined by the St. John the Baptist Parish Assessor's Office. The following is a summary of authorized and levied ad valorem taxes for the year: 
Parishwide Taxes Parishwide Courthouse and Jail Library Public Health Public Buildings Water Improvement Road Lighting District No.1 Parishwide Sewerage Mosquito Abatement District Juvenile Detention Center Public Buildings Training Center Public Buildings ARC Maintenance Senior Citizen Center 

Authorized Millage 4.25 1.00 10.00 1.00 0.50 7.50 5.00 4.30 0.50 1.00 0.50 0.50 1.00 

Levied Millage 4.24 1.04 9.99 1.00 0.50 7.50 4.99 4.30 0.50 1.00 0.50 0.50 1.00 

Expiration Date Permanent 12/31/05 12/31/01 12/31/98 12/31/04 12/31/04 12/31/97 12/31/04 12/31/98 12/31/08 12/31/04 12/31/08 12/31/08 



ST. JOHN THE BAPTIST PARISH COUNCIL LaPlace, Louisiana NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS December 31, 1997 
NOTE 4 - SALES AND USE TAX The Parish levies a four percent sales and use tax. The Parish and the St. John the Baptist Parish School Board have entered into an agreement under which the School Board co/lects the Parish's sales and use taxes for a stipulated fee. The School Board remits the proceeds of the sales and use taxes to the Parish on a monthly basis. Sales and use tax revenue recogruzed in 1997 totaled $8,677,245. NOTE 5 - CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS At December 31, 1997, the Council has cash and cash equivalents (book balances) totaling $3,662,992 of which $3,307,467 is unrestricted and $355,525 is restricted. Restricted cash is included with restricted assets on the combined balance sheet. In the enterprise funds, restricted cash equals $355,525 and unrestricted cash equals $692,303 for total cash of $1,047,828, which is presented as total cash in the statement of cash flows. These deposits are stated at cost, which approximates market. Under state law, these deposits (or the resulting bank balances) must be secured by federal deposit insurance or the pledge of securities owned by the fiscal agent bank. The market value of the pledged secunttes plus the federal deposit insurance must at all times equal the amount on deposit with the fiscal agent. These securities are held in joint custody in a federal reserve bank. At December 31, 1997, the Council has $4,085,435 in deposits (collected bank balances). These deposits are secured from risk by $300,000 of federal deposit insurance and $3,785,435 of pledged securities held by the federal reserve bank in the name of the fiscal agent bank and the Parish (GASB Category 1). 
The Parish's investments at December 31, 1997, consist of United States Treasury Bills, all of which were purchased with original maturities of one year or less. Under the provisions of Government Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 31, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Certain Investments and for External Investment Pools, these investments are reported at amorttzed cost. Investments at year end are categorized below to give an indication of the level of risk assumed by the Parish. The categories of credit risk are as follows: Category 1 - Insured or registered, or securities held by the Parish or its agent in the Parish's name Category 2 - Uninsured and unregistered, with securities held by the counterparty's trust department or agent in the Parish's name. Category 3 - Uninsured and unregistered, with securities held by the counterparty, or by its trust department or agent but not in the Parish's name. 



ST. JOHN THE BAPTIST PARISH COUNCIL LaPlace, Louisiana NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS December 31, 1997 
NOTE 6 - INVESTMENTS (CONTINUED) At year end, the Parish's investment balances were as follows: 
United States Treasury Bills Investmenls not subject to categorization: Deferred compensaliun agency fund Total investments 

Category 1 Can36ng Amount $ 12,003,970 
286,466 $ 12.290A36 

Market Value $ 12,052,855 
286,a66 

The investments in the Deferred Compensation Agency Fund are not evidenced by securities that exist in physical or book entry form and are therefore not categorized. All investments maintained in the proprietary funds are class61ed as held-to-maturity. These investments consist exclusively of U.S. Treasury Bills with ongnnal maturities of one year or less. The carrying amount of investments in the proprietary funds zs $3,404,363, and the market value is $3,423,080, resulting in an umeahzed gain of $18,717. 
NOTE 7 - RECEIVABLES The following is a summary of receivables at December 31, 1997 Special General Revenue Fund Funds Debt Capital Service Projects Proprietary Agency Funds Funds Funds Funds Taxes: Ad Valorem Sales & Use Other lntergovemmenlal: State Accounts receivable Other receivables 
Less: Allowance for estimated tmoo/leclibles 

$ 731,796 $1,141,664 $1,782,049 $ 1,318,632 81,918 
254,750 65,555 

67,220 $ 16,161 
1,588,629 10,797 
199,929 $3,722,729 1,534,722 81,918 
1,908,934 10,797 1,068,464 2,525,851 1,782,049 10,797 1,672,010 199,929 7,259,100 

29,081 29,081 



ST. JOHN THE BAPTIST PARISH COUNCIL LaPlace, Louisiana NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS December 31, 1997 
NOTE 7 - RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED) The allowance for estimated uncollectible receivables is based on historical collection experience and other relevant circumstances. The allowance for estimated uncollectibles consists of the following: Proprietary Funds: Sewer District 1B Solid Waste Gas and Water 
Total allowance for uncollectible accounts 
NOTE 8 - FIXED ASSETS 

$14,631 2,072 12,378 
_~ 29.081 

The changes in the General Fixed Asset Account Group d~ag the year ended December 31, 1997, follow: Balance January 1, 1997 Land & building $10,481,791 Equipment & furniture 7,857,983 Construction in progress 73.483 
Additions $ 333,403 278,843 $ 559,295 20,000 73,483 

Balance December 31, 1997 $ 10,255,899 8,116,826 
Total $18.413:257 $ 612.246 $ 652.778 ~_1_8~372,7_2_q 
A summary of activity during the year ended December 31, 1997, for property, plant, and equipment held in the Parish's Enterprise Funds follows: 

Land Buildings Systems Equipment Construction in progress 

Balance January 1, 1997 $ 101,883 34L896 73,506,151 1,624,160 2,948,277 

Additions Deletions $ $ 6,947 3,291,653 189,784 3,016,385 12,227 3,134,629 

Balance December 31, 1997 $ 101,883 354,843 76,79~804 1,801,717 2,830,033 Subtotal $78,528,367 $6,504,769 $3,146,856 $ 81,886,280 



ST. JOHN THE BAPTIST PARISH COUNCIL LaPlace, Louisiana NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS December 31, 1997 
NOTE 8 - FIXED ASSETS (CONTINUED) 
Less: Accumulated Depreciation Total 

Balance January 1, 1997 
$ 23,933,994 $2,031,725 
_$}4.59_4.373__ 4~L!A.2~ 0_44_ Construction in progress consists of~e following: Expended to December .~1, 1997 Sewer District Wallace Proper Skips Program Capt. Bourgeois Gravity Line 

Gas & Water Fund Lions Plant Transmission Line 

$2,086,256 131,620 299,539 
104,259 208,359 Total censtruction in progress ~2,83_0__0033 

NOTE 9 - PENSION p1.AN 

$ 12,227 
_$L 1 L4,622 

Balance December 31, 1997 
$ 25,953,492 $ 5 ~ 932 788 

Plan Description. Substantially all employees of the St. John the Baptist Council are members of the Parochial Employees' Retirement System of Louisiana (the System), a multiple-employer (cost- sharing), public employee retirement system (PERS), controlled and administered by a separate board of trustees. The System is composed of two distinct plans, Plan A and Plan B, with separate assets and benefit provisions. All employees ofthe Council are members of Plan A. All permanent employees working at least 28 hours per week who are paid wholly or in part fiom parish fimds and all elected parish officials are eligible to participate in the system. Under Plan A, employees who retire at or after age 60 with at least 10 years of creditable service, at or after age 55 with at least 25 years of creditable service, or at any age with at least 30 years of creditable service are entitled to a retirement benefit, payable monthly for life, equal to 3 per cent of their final-average salary for each year of creditable service. However, for those employees who were members of the supplemental plan only prior to January 1, 1980, the benefit is equal to one per cent of final average salary plus $24 for each year of supplemental-plan-only service earned prior 



ST. JOHN THE BAPTIST PARISH COUNCIL LaPlace, Louisiana NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS December 31, 1997 
NOTE 9 - PENSION PLAN (CONTINUED) to January 1, 1980, plus 3 per cent of final-average salary for each year of service credited after the revision date. Final-average salary is the employee's average salary over the 36 consecutive or joined months that produce the highest average. Employees who terminate with at least the amount of creditable service stated above, and do not withdraw their employee contributions, may retire at the ages specified above and receive the benefit accrued to their date of termination. The System also provides death and disability benefits. Benefits are established by state statute. The System issues an annual publicly available financial report that includes financial statements and required supplementary information for the System. That report may be obtained by writing to the Parochial Employees' Retirement System, Post Office box 14619, Baton Rouge, Louisiana 70898- 4619, or by calling (504) 928-1361. Funding Policy. Under Plan A, Members are required by statute to contribute 9.5 percent of their annual covered salary and the ST. JOHN THE BAPTIST PARISH COUNCIL is required to contribute at an actuarially determined rate. Effective January 1, 1997, the current employer contribution rate is 7.75 percent of annual covered payroll. Contributions to the System also include one-fourth of one per cenl of the taxes shown to be collectible by the tax rolls of each pansh (except Orleans and East Baton Rouge Parishes). These tax dollars are divided between Plan A and Plan B based proportionately on the salaries of the active members of each plan. The contribution requirements of plan members and the ST. JOHN THE BAPTIST PARISH COUNCIL are established and may be amended by state statute. As provided by Louisiana Revised Statute 11:103, the employer contributions are determined by actuarial valuation and are subject to change each year based on the results of the valuation of the prior fiscal year. The ST. JOHN THE BAPTIST PARISH COUNCIL'S contributions to the System under Plan A for the year ended December 31, 1997, totaled $222,186, which is equal to the required contribution for the year. The covered payroll for the year ended December 31, 1997, totaled $2,866,916. 
NOTE 10 - OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS The ST. JOHN TI-m BAPTIST PARISH COUNCIL provides certain continuing health care and life insurance benefits for its employees. Substantially all of the Council's employees become eligible for these benefits if they reach normal retirement age while working for the Council. These benefits for retirees and similar benefits for active employees are provided through an insurance company whose monthly premiums are paid jointly by the employee and the Council. Benefits for active employees are paid in full by the Council. The Council recognizes the cost of providing these benefits as an expenditure when paid during the year. 



ST. JOHN THE BAPTIST PARISH COUNCIL LaPlace, Louisiana NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS December 31, 1997 
NOTE 11 - ACCOUNTS, SALARIES, AND OTHER PAYABLES The following is a summary of accounts, salaries, and other payables as of December 31, 1997 
Class Special Capital of General Revenue Projecls Enterpnse Agency Payable Fund Funds Funds Funds Funds Total 
Salaries Withholding 
Accounts 
Total 

$ 353 $ 1,780 $ 
71,651 55,820 

$ 84,990 $ 
45,140 

$ 87,123 
172,611 120,548 95,620 508,492 463,917 286,466 1,475,043 ~_192.552 =~53,220 $508.~92 $ 594.04_7 $286,466 17~  

NOTE 12 - COMPENSATED ABSENCES Only full time regular employees with a minimum of six months of employment service are eligible for sick pay. At rettrement, all accumulated, unused, and unpaid sick leave days are forwarded to the retirement system for conversion upon appfication for normal retirement. At December 31, 1997, the Council employees had no accumulated or vested employee leave benefits that would materially affect the financial statements. 
NOTE 13 - LEASES The following is a schedule of capital lease obligations at December 3 l, 1997 
Motorola Radios Motorola Radios Motorola Radios Motorola Radios Motorola Radios LaPlace Fire Truck Westbank Pumper Truck Bertrand Lease Ford Dump Truck Equipment Cat 312 Excavator LaPlace Resctm Trock 

CapjmliTahle lnteresl Termmaaon Pnnopal Amotmt Pale Date Balm~cc $ 9,771,600 106,077 51,181 30,710 46,159 204,966 160,249 19,816 116,882 49,860 77,371 196,973 

7.12 6.97 6.97 6.97 6.97 5.94 8.05 5.25 5.86 5.85 6.50 5.75 31 

06/01/00 $ 09/15/98 09/15/98 09/15/98 09/15/98 12/31/98 06/03/98 08/11/01 O6/25/98 05/08D8 02/05/99 07/31/01 

40,519 19,561 9,438 5,663 8,512 47,252 26,409 8,600 16,069 7,118 24,542 96,119 

Interest to Mamnty. $ 3,954 572 276 166 249 2,115 2,126 276 1,008 14,204 



ST. JOHN THE BAPTIST PARISH COUNCIL LaPlace, Louisiana NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS December 31, 1997 
NOTE 13 - LEASES (CONTINUED) 
Description 
Reserve Rescue Truck ~e Pumper Ford Sewer Cleaner Westbank Rescue Truck 

Capitalizable Interest Termination Principal Amount Rate Date Balance 
$ 179,265 136,668 159,610 190,665 

6.00 6.13 5.25 6.00 
$ 161,241 101,238 155,932 176,291 

Interest to Mattmty $ 37,413 15,974 16,920 53,148 
The Council records items under capital leases as assets and obligations in the accompanying financial statements. The following is an analysis of capital lease activity during the year ended December 31, 1997: Capital lease obligations at January 1, 1997 $1,030,271 Add: New lease obligations Less: Principal payments Capital lease obligations at December 31, 1997 

159,610 285,377 
$ 904.50_._44 The following is a schedule of future minimum lease payments under capital leases and the present value of the net minimum lease payments as of December 31, 1997: 

Year Ended 1998 1999 2000 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 Total Minimum Lease Payments Less: Amounts Representing Interest Present Value of Net Minimum Lease Payments 
32 

Equipment $ 347,062 179,340 164,968 148,934 53,873 53,873 53,873 25,494 25,488 1,052,905 148,401 



ST. JOHN THE BAPTIST PARISH COUNCIL LaPlace, Louisiana NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS December 31, 1997 
NOTE 14 - LOANS PAYABLE At December 31, 1997, the Council had loans outstanding totaling $350,000 to finance current operations of the General Fund. These bank loans are short-term notes secured by the pledge of revenues, and mature in 1998. 
NOTE 15 - CHANGES IN GENERAL LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS The following is a summary of general long-term obligations transactions for the year ended December 31, 1997: Bonded Debt and Lease Certtficates of Purchase Promissory Indebtedness Act eemcqts Notes Total Long-Term Obligations Payable at January 1, 1997 $ 41,721,000 $ 1,030,271 Additions Deductions 159,610 

2,632,000 285,377 
Long-Term Obligations Payable at December 31, 1997 $ 3_9:089.000 $ 904.504 

$ 15,400 
4,900 
$ 42,766,671 159,610 
2,922,277 

General Obfigation Bonds, Revenue Bonds, Certificates of Indebtedness, and other long-term debt are comprised of the following individual issues: Dale of Alahotzed and l.~ued Interest R~e % ra~y hin~ J~n~t Date ~n~ ~ M~n~t ~lhh~ J mprovel/l~t ]3~ld~ Pubh~ lm~eraent D~ds. S~aes A-1974 111 h~Duo lmpro~ Bores, Series 13-1974 [1] Wat~ lmpro~1976 [11 East Baak Office Bld~- 1978 [1] Public hlt~vensmt Rffunding ~ - Series ST-1989 Publle Bonds -ST 1990 Pablie ~rne~t 13~~da -ST 1990 E~nomio Develolnne~ Road & Drainage Sales Tax Bonds-1990 Public Inlprovefoellt Bcnlds, Series ST-1993 

03101/74 $ 272,000 03/01/74 236,000 08/01/76 3,339,000 04/01/78 800,00O 12/01/89 16,980,000 01/01/90 01/01/90 08/01/90 04/01/93 

5.0-6.0 5.0-6.0 5.5-6.5 4.5-6.5 
03/01/99 $ 43,000 $ 2,217 03/01/99 08/01/01 04/01/03 6.5-7.8 12/01/14 8,150,000 7.1-10.0 12~1/14 1,095,000 7.0-10.0 01/01/1O 2,420,000 6.7-10.0 08/01/00 

33 

41,000 985,000 310000 14,700,000 515,000 840,000 995,000 1,210,000 

2,115 145,248 44,493 12,543,008 73,1oo 458,794 140,415 893,996 



ST. JOHN THE BAPTIST PARISH COUNCIL LaPlace, Louisiana NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS December 31, 1997 
NOTE 15 - CHANGES IN GENERAL LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS (CONTINUED) Da~e of Aulhofized lntef~ Malurity Principal 
Pubh~ In ~pmvement ~o~d.~ t~ubll~ In q~mvcment S~I~ STo 1994 Public ]m~x~zeme~ ]3ond~ Series ST-1995 Publlo Im~eam~t Refunding BoncE-1996 Pubfic Improv~~ Bond~ STo1996 Total Publlo ~vcme~t Bonda (rencnd Obh g~ion Bonds FaJx~l~ld~ Sewerage- 1979 [1] (,~a'al Obhgatton Refunding Bonds-1992 Ill Genera Obhg~on Bonds - Series 1993 [1 To~ C..enefa/Obllgalioaa Bonds (An'llllCal~ of lndellled~ess Ce~fi~le of Inddaechl~1989 Certmc~le ol ind~b~1993 ~oaae of mdeote~e~s- 1994 Cextiticale of lndebte~ess- 1996 

10/01/94 $ 500,000 07101/95 g00,000 12/01/96 6,800,000 10/01/96 2,700,000 
09101/79 04/01/92 08/01/93 
06/01/89 12/02/93 tY2/22~4 10/08/96 Total Cealificates of IMelC.ed~ Tolal Bond~ and Ce~ of Indebtedn~s PI~ mx~rx, No~es Ma,AIo,~ cr Bcoex olent Assooiafi~'l Bossier Prop,~ T~tal~N~t~ Torah 

1,700,000 8,725,000 500,0O0 
1,210,000 350,000 350,000 500,000 
25,000 25,0O0 

5.5-10.0 5.3-10.0 3.9-5.6 5.1-5.5 
6.1-6.75 6.1-6.75 3.95-9.0 
7.6-11.0 5.5 5.5 5.25-6.05 

01/01/14 01101/15 12/01/14 12/01/14 
03/01/04 03/01/08 08/01/08 
06/01/99 04/01/03 03/01104 04/01/06 
0~15/99 0~15D9 

$ 460,000 $ 273,898 77~0O0 579~34 6~5~0 2fi30,000 3,526,604 1 ,~04,280 $ Z0,2~4,000 $ 20,197,402 $ 785,000 188,420 6315000 -- 410,01~ 1,485 116 136,gg0 $ 7510000 I; 1810416 
$ 345,000 235,00O 265,00O 500,000 
$ 26,790 40,564 54,314 146,908 $ 1,345,000 $ 268,576 $ 39,089,009 $ 22~66,.394 $ 5,000 5,500 $ $ I 0,~.oo $ 

At December 31, 1997, the Council has aectunulated $5,911,217 in Debt Service Funds for future debt requirements. The annual requirements to amortize all bonds and/0r certificates outstanding at December 31, 1997, including total interest of $22,414,795 (bonded debt and promissory notes $22,266,394, capital leases $148,401) are as follows: Bonded Debt Capital and Cet'ificates Lease of Indebtedness Obligation $ 5,343,654 5,360,092 5,111,051 4,727,011 4A~0,608 19 793,793 16,579,185 
347,062 179,340 164,968 148,934 53,873 158,729 

Notes Total $ 5,500 5,000 5,696,216 5,544,432 5,276,019 4,875,945 4,494.481 19,952,522 16,579,185 Total $ 61.355.394 $ 1.052.906 $ 10.500 $ 62.418.8._________________~ 



ST. JOHN THE BAPTIST PARISH COUNCIL LaPlace, Louisiana NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS December 31, 1997 
NOTE 15 - CHANGES IN GENERAL LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS (CONTINUED) General Obligation Bonds, totaling $7,510,000, and Public Improvement Bonds totaling $1,379,000, indicated by a [1] on the schedule of debt issues, are secured by an annual ad valorem tax levy. In accordance with Louisiana Revised Statute 39:562, the Council is legally restricted from incurring long-term bonded debt in excess of 10 percent of the assessed value of property in the Parish. At December 31, 1997, the total assessed value of property in the Parish was $205,648,000, and the statutory limit was $20,565,000. The total indebtedness secured by ad valorem taxes totaled $8,889,000. The long-term debt account group does not include any of the Pollution Control Revenue Bonds or Industrial Revenue Bonds issued by the industrial districts of St. John the Baptist Parish. Obligations of the industrial districts are payable solely from the income and revenues derived from the industrial districts. Although the name of the Council appears on the face of the bonds, the Council has not guaranteed payment of those bonds in the event of default by the issuing authority. In 1989, the Council defeased certain 1987 Public Improvement Bonds by placing the proceeds of the new bonds in an irrevocable trust to provide for all future debt service payments on the 1987 bonds. Accordingly, the trust account assets and the liability for the defeased bonds are not included in the Council's financial statements. In 1992, the Council defeased $265,000 of Series 1983 Health Unit Bonds, $5,150,000 of Series 1984 Water Improvement Bonds, and $2,610,000 of Senes 1986 Parishwide Sewerage System Bonds by placing the proceeds of the new bonds in an irrevocable trust to provide for all future debt service payments of the defeased bonds. Accordingly, the trust account assets and the liability for the defeased bonds are not included in the Council's financial statements. In 1996, the Council defeased $6,200,000 &Public Improvement Bonds, Series ST 1990, by issuing $6,800,000 of Public Improvement Refunding Bonds, Series 1996. The Couneilplaced the proceeds of the new bonds in an irrevocable trust to provide for all future debt service payments of the defeased bonds. Accordingly, the trust account assets and the liability for the defeased bonds are not included in the Council's financial statements. The following is a summary of bonded debt of the Gas and Water Distribution System for the year ended June 30, 1997: Dateof Alahodzed Issuance ~d lmued Inmna Matunt~ P,~ ~ % Dale l'nm~paJ )utstan&ne m Mahm~ I~e~me Bon~ Waler and Ga~ Series 1971 S~lial I3~gls Wamr md Cras, Saaes 1973 Serial Bonds Wal~ and Gas, Seaaes 197g Setlal Bc~d~ Water md Gas, Set'ies 1990 Serial Bonds Water and CrM, Series 199"3 Serial Bonds Tetal Revex~e B~~~ 

12/01/71 06/01/73 12/01/78 02/01/90 05/01/93 
35 

12/01/01 12/01/01 12/01/08 124)1/14 12/01/11 
$ 137,250 6.60O 4320 286,458 26324,166 



ST. JOHN THE BAPTIST PARISH COUNCIL LaPlace, Louisiana NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS December 31, 1997 
NOTE 15 - CHANGES IN GENERAL LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS (CONTINUED) DaU~ of Authorized and Issued Interest Rate% Maturity Principal Interest Dale Out~tandlnv |n M.m~ C ,'ri,h~ ot~ oflndebtednem ~,mhcates oflndebteck~s-1995 0&~23/95 250,000 6,50 . 04/01/05 $ 210~000 $ 66,950 
$281,000 of the Gas and Water Bonds Payable are payable from restricted assets, and the remaining $5,201,000 constitute long-term debt. The following is a summary of bond and other long-term debt transactions of the Gas and Water Enterprise Fund for the year ended June 30, 1997 Long-term obligations payable at July 1, 1996 $5,753,000 Less: Principal payments 271,000 Long-term obligations payable at June 30, 1997 $5,482~0Q0 According to the terms of the bond indenture agreements, the Gas and Water Distribution System must provide net revenues in each year equal to at least 130 percent of the bond principal and interest payments in that year. For the fiscal year ended June 30, 1997, the bond debt service coverage factor was met. The annual requirements to amortize Gas and Water Distribution System debt outstanding as of June 30, 1997, including interest payments of $2,825,744 are as follows: Year Endm~June 30, 1998 1999 2000 2001 2O02 20O3-2008 2009-2015 

Amount $ 598,720 553,296 563,123 556,668 549,514 3,266,459 2,219,964 



ST. JOHN THE BAPTIST PARISH COUNCIL LaPlace, Louisiana NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS December 31, 1997 
NOTE 16 - CHANGES IN AGENCY FUNDS A summary of changes m assets and liabilities follows: Balances Balances Beginning of End of Year Additions Reductions Year Assets: Cash Investments Receivables, net 

$ 29,616 259,237 282,891 $2,144,643 43,957 199,929 $2,136,856 16,728 282,891 $ 37,403 286,466 199,929 
Liabilities: Accounts payable $ 3,031 $ 2,591-- $ 3,465 $ 2,157 Benefits payable 259,237 43,957 16,728 286,466 Due to other funds 309,476 2,210,756 2,285,057 235,175 Total liabilities ~l.'r4_ 4 $_2~257.304 $2,305.250 $ 523.7J  
NOTE 17 - DUE TO/FROM OTHER FUNDS The following is summary of amounts due to/due from other funds at December 31, 1997 
General Fund Special Revenue Funds Debt Service Funds Capital Projects Funds Proprietary Funds Agency Funds 
Difference due to Gas and Water Fund with fiscal year ended June 30, 1997 Total Due To/Due From Other Funds 

Due From $ 16,019 398,414 
363,077 
777,510 381,068 
$1.158.578 

Due To 125,000 21,402 
777,001 235.175 
1,158,578 
$1.158.578 



ST. JOHN THE BAPTIST PARISH COUNCIL LaPlace, Louisiana NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS December 31, 1997 
NOTE 18 - OPERATING TRANSFERS IN/OUT The following is summary of operating transfers made during the year ended December 31, 1997 
General Fund Special Revenue Funds Debt Service Funds Capital Project Funds Enterprise Funds Internal Service Funds 
Difference in Gas and Water Fund with fiscal year ended June 30, 1997 
Total Operating Transfers In/Out 
NOTE 19 - CRIMINAL COURT FUND 

Transfers In $1,035,289 644,071 3,494,387 300,000 1,006,500 26,440 
6,506,687 

Transfers Out $ 195,160 5,473,682 120,188 
117,471 75,000 
5,981,501 525.186 
$6.506.687 

Louisiana Revised Statutes, at LSA-P,_ S. 15:571.11 requires that one-half of any balance remaining in the Criminal Court Fund at year-end be transferred to the Parish's General fund. There is no amount due at December 31, 1997. 
NOTE 20 - COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES 
l.,ltlgatlon The Parish is a named defendant m a number of claims and lawsuits resulting principally from personal injury, property damage, assessments, and construction claims. The Parish Attorney has reviewed these claims and lawsuits m order to evaluate the likelihood of an unfavorable outcome to the Parish and to arrive at an estimate, if any, of the amount or range of potential loss to the Parish. As a result of such review, the various claims and lawsuits have been categorized into "probable," "reasonably possible," and "remote" contingencies as defined in GASB Codification C50. The Parish's "reasonably possible" loss contingencies at December 31, 1997, for which an amount of liability can be estimated, approximate $200,000. In accordance with the GASB Codification, this amount has not been recorded as a liability of the General Fund, nor has it been recorded as a general long-term liability. Legal counsel's opinion on the ultimate resolution of these matters is that little or no loss to the Parish Council should be incurred. 



ST. JOHN THE BAPTIST PARISH COUNCIL LaPlace, Louisiana NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS December 31, 1997 
NOTE 20 - COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES (CONTINUED) 
The Parish receives signiticant financial assistance from numerous federal and state governmental agencies in the form of grants. The disbursement of funds received under these p~ograms generally requtres compliance with terms and conditions specified in the grant agreements. The programs are audited in accordance with the Single Audit Act of 1996 and are subject to further examination by the grantor agency. Any disallowed claims resulting from such audits could become a fiability of the General Fund or other applicable funds. However, in the opinion of management, any such disallowed claims will not have a material effect on any of the financial statements During 1997, the food stamp program was operated by the Parish under an agreement with the State of Louisiana that terminated in November, 1997, at which time all undistributed food stamps were returned to the State. Under this program, the Parish was responsible for the issuance of food stamps to ehgqble participants in the Parish. The value of.food stamps on hand, received, and issued has not been recorded in the accompanying statements. Effective November 1, 1997, the food stamp program was no longer administered by the Parish. Activity for the year follows: Balance at January 1, 1997 Received Issued Balance at December 31, 1997 
NOTE 21 - RESERVED FUND BALANCES AND RETAINED EARNINGS 

$ 1,474,549 1,563,750 (3,038,299) 

The nature and purpose of the reserves of fund balances and retained earnings are as follows: Fund balances - Reserved for debt service Fund balance available to pay the principal balances of the Parish's general long term obligations. Fund balances - Reserved for capital projects Unexpended funds remaining in a departmental budget dedicated for capital projects to be performed in future 

$5,911,217 
859,122 

Retained earnings - Reserved for bond retirement and capital additions $1,274,147 Retained earnings restricted to paying principal and interest in the Sewer Fund and Gas and Water Fund as well as expenditures for capital additions for these funds. 39 



ST. JOHN THE BAPTIST PARISH COUNCIL LaPlace, Louisiana NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS December 31, 1997 
NOTE 21 - RESERVED FUND BALANCES AND RETAINED EARNINGS (CONTINUED) Retained earnings - Reserved for balance due to the library 
NOTE 22 - DEFERRED COMPENSATION PLAN 

$ 47,500 
The Parish offers its employees a deferred compensation plan created in accordance with Internal Revenue Code (IRC) Section 457. The plan, available to all Parish employees, permits them to defer a portion of their salary until future years. The deferred compensation is not available to employees until termination, retirement, death, or unforeseeable emergency. All amounts of compensation deferred under the plan, all property and fights purchased with those amounts, and all income atmbutable to those amounts, property, or rights are (until paid or made available to the employee or other beneficiary) solely the property and rights of the Parish (without being restricted to the provisions of benefits under the plan), subject only to the claims of the Parish's general creditors. Participants' rights under the plan are equal to those of general creditors of the Parish in an amount equal to the fair market value of the deferred account for each participant. It is the opinion of the Parish's legal counsel that the Parish has no liability for losses under the plan but does have the duty of due care that would be required of an ordinary prudent investor The Parish believes that it is unhkely that it will use the assets to satisfy the claims of general cre&tors in the future. In 1997, the U.S. Congress passed legislation requiring the amendment of IRC Section 457 Plans by January 1, 1999. The amendment, when adopted by the Council, will place all assets of the Plan into a trust for the exclusive benefit of participants and their beneficiaries. 
NOTE 23 - SUBSEQUENT EVENTS Gas System Sale In October, 1997, subsequent to the reported June 30, 1997, year end of the Gas and Water Enterprise Fund, the Parish completed the sale of its natural gas distribution system to Citizens Utdttles, Inc. for $2.1 million. At the closing of the sale, the Parish defeased substantially all of tts outstanding gas and water revenue bonds through the issue of $356,000 Water Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 1997A, and $2,445,000 of Taxable Water Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 199713 This transaction had no effect on any fund other than the Gas and Water Enterprise Fund. 



ST. JOHN THE BAPTIST PARISH COUNCIL LaPlace, Louisiana NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS December 31, 1997 
NOTE 23 - SUBSEQUENT EVENTS (CONTENUED) 

On March 1, 1998, the Parish issued $6,000,000 of General Obligation Drainage Bonds, Series 1998A; $1,200,000 of General Obligation Public Buildings Bonds, Series 1998B; and $2,925,000 of Certiticates of Indebtedness, Series 1998. 

41 



SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION 



Assets Cash ~d cash equivalents Investments Receivables Other Receivables Due from other funds Due from other gove~ents Total assets Liabiliues ~d fend balance Liabilities Accounts and salaries payable Due to oth~ tends Due to other governments Other liabilities Contract payable Loans payable 
F~d bal~ U~ese~d,~designated 
ToteI liabtiities ~ti fund balance 

St. John the Baptist Parish Council LaPlace, Louisiana Special Revenue Funds Combining Balance Sheet December 31,1997 
Ro~ Criminal Civil Und~e~ Court Defe~e Parish Juvenile 3heel Health Transport- Detention Comne~s Airport Juvenile Fxonomic *ghlm~ Unit Tax ation Center Fed Authority Fines Develonme 
$ 456,379 $ 20,023 $ 299,882 23.162 25,587 12,061 123,236 

16,619 25,881 4,283 $ 21,445 $ $ 1,555 $ $ 70,518 $ $ 146.143 220,494 - - 247.017 133,755 134,440 997 300,856 17,406 11,188 
3,000 37,459 6,954 9.002 5,151 8,813 6,409 197,156 19,962 

See Independent Auditor's Report 



 

LaPlace Resewe WesOoank Om~ville Volunteer VolUnteer Vol~tcer Volunteer Comm~m- Sales ARC Senior Convention Rese~e FI~ F~ Fire Fire ication Tax Ambul~ Maintenance C16zens Reoreauon Center Drainage ,..o~.) r~...~en~ Denatm~ent Denarmaent District District F~d F~d Tax Fund F~d Fund Total 

2,773 2,264 6,755 489 2,319 4,258 4,317 238 153,220 21,402 - 42,610 2,400 313.233 19,962 

See Independent Auditor's Report 



Revenues T~~ Ad valorem Sal~ md me Lioem~ & p~ts lmergovemmental revenues Federal grants State ~xm~ Parish trampor~tton State revenue jharing Other Fees. char~, end eommmmm Fin~ and forfeitures fo~ Income Oth~r ~w.u~ Totelre*enues Expendttur~ General gove~ent F~dal and admir~trau~ Building and pl~t Pubh~ safety Health and ~lfa~ E~omw development T~portauon Debt ~rvla~ Total expendltut~ Bxo~s (Deftot~oy) of revenues ~ expendttur~ Other financing ~mees (~) proceeds of l~ Sale of fixed ~ets Ol,er~ti~ ~fm m Operating h~mffen ~t Total oth~ fir, a~m$ souroe~ (m~) Excreta (Defioi~y) of revenues ~nd oth~ sources over expenditmes and other us~ ~Xmd balmxoe~ beghum~ of year R~idual T~f~ Fund balm~, ~ad ofy~ 

St, ,Iehtt the Baptist Parish Council LaPlace, Leuislana Special Revenue Funds Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances Fer the Year Ended December 31, I997 RO~dd~ P~h luvende Ctmunal ulvd '~lree~ H~lth Transport- Detention Co~neds Attport Ee, onomtc ~nd~es Court Defense L~JItaX~ UmtT~ ataon Center Fund Authority Developmen 
$ . $ $ $ 702,859 $ 140.812 $ 1,709,429 1,106 27,077 - 25,967 16.738 151,474 602 6.324 33,814 . 644,099 - - - 14.201 2.242 7.921 36,863 18,g16 6 730 120 22~ 

2.997 13.881 2,077 4,318 

$ 

49,370 1,586 13.125 1,123 59.246 52.079 1.781.g01 

1,769,274 83.377 

5 6a9 176 366 
211,346 14,192 

- 244,104 36,569 1,981 200,000 

425,688 (536.602) - 124,279 30.000 8,000 (1 a62 47F 

See Independent AuditoPs Report 44 



 

Re~e Volunt~t FJm Oaryvdle Volunt~r Commun- Sales ARC Sctltor Cenv~tion Res~e Fire icaUon T~ Ambul~ Malnt~ Clttzens R~emtlon enter Drainage )eoartment District District Fund Fund T~ Fund Fund Fund 
548,271 247,221 179,569 165.673 4,117,652 
38.913 15.721 11.479 17.720 217,567 9.280 4,892 6,299 4,219 14,526 118,368 1,388 176,881 I,g21 922 

$ 70.548 $ 140,676 $ 
- 72.436 2.605 99 11,352 

$ 1,196,046 8,677,245 1,106 

5%4o4 2~7 8~4 197.347 l$76[2 191,407 4,237,841 21",877 73,026 144,C02 2,704 8378b 537 
403,911 233,[78 157,156 123,958 86,829 
05,059 41,331 65,710 39,475 18,300 

202,O99 78,669 119.845 14.570 
876,897 35.443 1,265.776 541,848 244,104 20,40l 2,470,226 555,233 

(45,374) (3 420 25~) (5000) - 124.279 0,383 644.071 15 473 682 

S~~ Independent Auditor's Report 



Asses Cash and cash equivalents Investments Receivables Total assets 
Liabilities and fund balance Liabilities Other payables Due to other funds 
Total liabilities Fund balance Reserved for debt service Total fund balance 
Total liabilities and fund balance 

See Independent Auditor's Report 

St. John the Baptist Parish Council LaPlace, Louisiana Debt Service Funds Combining Balance Sheet December 31, 1997 
Fire Parishwide Parishwide Economic Economic Road and Protection Sewerage Sewerage Development Development Drainage District 2 Sale~ Tax Sales Tax Sales Tax Sales Tax Sales Tax 

528 
528 



Road and 1992 Drainage General 1989 1994 Parishwide Sales Tax Obligation Certificates of Certificates of Sewerage Land Sinking Sinking Indebtedness Indebtedness Purchases Total 

528 
528 

See Independent Auditor's Report 47 



Revenues Taxes Ad valorem Special assessment Interest income 
To~lrevanues 

St. John the Baptist Parish Council LaPlace, Louisiana Debt Service Funds Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances For the Year Ended December 31, 1997 

Expenditures General government Financial and administrative Debt service Principal Interest Total expenditures Excess (Deficiency) of revenues over expenditures Other financing sources (uses) Bond Proceeds Operating transfers in Operating transfers out Total other financing sources (uses) Excess (Deficiency) of revenues and other sources over expenditures and other uses 
Fund balances, beginning of year Fund balances, end ofyear 
See Independent Auditor's Report 

Fire Parishwide Parishwide Economic Economic Road and Prnteetinn Sewerage Sewerage Development Development Drainage District 2 Sales Tax Sales Tax Sales Tax Sales Tax Sales Tax Sinking Reserve Sinking Reserve Sinking Reserve 

449 65,000 1,300 
6,536 735,000 1,771,155 

1,609 110,000 242,477 
66,749 3 2,512,691 354,086 

(60,071) 38,638 84,422 2,512,906 21,320 296,410 10,722 363,914 4,097 5,273 7,281 241,503 
$ 24,351 $ 2,551,544 $ 317,730 $ 374,636 $ 9,370 $ 248,784 



Road and 1992 Drainage General 1989 1994 Parishwide Sales Tax Obligation Certificates of Certificates of Sewerage Land Sinking Sinking Indebtedness Indebtedness Purchases "l oral 

378 1,948 
290,000 88,665 1,222,000 551,345 

417 
150,000 31,920 30,000 4,900 15,400 

11,340 2,606,900 2,702,262 379,043 1,775,293 182,337 45,400 4,900 5,320,502 
(372,088) 111,866 (177,425) (45,400) (4,431) (3,204,460) 

28,022 111,866 
136,328 1,973,611 

12,295 
115,153 (4,431) 11,958 169,739 5,741,478 $ 164,350 $ 2,085,477 $ 127,448 $ $ 7,527 $ 5,911,217 

See Independent Auditor's Report 



Assets 

St. John the Baptist Parish Council LaPlace, Louisiana Capital Projects Funds Combining Balance Sheet December 31, 1997 

Cash and cash equivalents Investments Receivables Due from other funds Due from other governments Total assets 
Liabilities and fund balance Liabilities Accounts payable Contracts payable Total liabilities 
Fund balance Reserved for capital projects Total fund balance Total liabilities and fund balance 

See Independent Auditor's Report 

Bond Series 1990 Parishwide Parishwide Sewerage Woodland Sewerage Construction Sewerage Construction Phase II Construction Phase II Total 

4,872 4,660 508,492 134,267 508,492 143,799 4,872 4,660 642,759 652,291 



Revenues Federal grants State funds Interest income Other revenues Totulrevenues 
Expenditures Public works Health and welfare Totulexpenditures 

St. John the Baptist Parish Council LaPlace, Louisiana Capital Projects Funds Combmmg Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances For the Year Ended December 31, 1997 

Excess (Deficiency) of revenues over expenditures Other financing sources (uses) Bond Proceeds Operating transfers m Operating transfers out Total other fmancing sources (uses) Excess (Deficiency) of revenues and other sources over expenditures and other uses Fund balances, beginning of year 
Residual Equity Transfer Fund balances, end of year 
See Independent Auditor's Report 

Bond Series 1990 Parishwide Parishwide Economic Sewerage Woodland Sewerage Development Construction Sewerage Construction Capital Phase I1 Construction Phase II Improvements Total 
$ 7.789 $ 1,863 $ $ 117.459 127.111 

(73,911) 230,678 (51,827) 47,269 (2,475,885) 3,182,798 161 (161 
(2,601,623) 3,460,906 (161) $ 156,767 $ (4,558) $ 706,913 $ $ 859,122 



Assets Current assets Cash and cash equivalents Investments Receivables, net Due from other funds Other receivables Inventory 
Total current assets Restricted assets Cash and cash equivalents Investments 
Total restricted assets Property, plant & equipment Property, plant & equipment Accumulated depreciation Net property, plant & equipment 
Other assets Other assets Net other assets 
Total assets 

St. John the Baptist Parish Council LaPlace, Louisiana Enterprise Funds Combining Balance Sheet December 31, 1997 
6/30/97 12/31/97 12/31/97 12/31/97 Gas and Solid Mosquito Water Sewerage Waste Abatement Total 

2,674,272 135,599 2,809,871 

136,925 136,925 



St. John the Baptist Parish Council LaPlace, Louisiana Enterprise Funds Combining Balance Sheet December 31, 1997 
6/30/97 Gas and Water 
12/31/97 
Sewerage 12/31/97 12/31/97 Sohd Mosquito Waste Abatement Total Liabilities and fund balance Liabilities Current liabilities payable from Current asseLs Accounts and salaries payable $ 235,652 $ 219,973 $ 120,342 $ 18,080 $ Due to other funds 764,964 9,481 2,556 Due to other governments Other accrued expenses Notes payable, current portion 6,129 Other liabilities 10,000 

Total current liabilities payable from current assets Current liabilities payable from i esU;lcted assets Customer deposits Bonds payable, current portion Accrued interest payable 
Total current liabilities payable from restricted assets Long-term liabilities Notes payable Bonds payable Total long-term liabilities Total liabilities Fund equity Contributed capital Retained earnings Reserved Unreserved Total fund balance 

Total liabilities and fund balance 

594,047 777,001 
6,129 10.000 

792,824 281,000 25,904 792,824 281,000 25,904 

13,825,184 1,009,424 4,456,980 
32,275,865 264,723 2,010,666 285,163 384,750 

46,101,049 1274,147 7,137,559 

53 



 
St. John the Baptist Parish Council LaPlace, Louisiana Enterprise Funds Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Retained Earnings For the Year Ended December 31, 1997 

Revenues Water sales Gas sales Sewer charges Mosquito abatement Ad valorem tax Fees, charges, and commissions Reimbursed indirect costs Other income Total revenues 
Operating expenses Purchases General administration Purification Distribution Salaries, operations Plant Vehicles Indirect costs Contract services Miscellaneous Depreciation 
Total operating expenses Operating income (loss) Nonoperating income (expense) Interest income Interest expense Gain on sale of equipment Amortization of bond discount 

6/30/97 12/31/97 12/31/97 12/31/97 Gas and Solid Mosquito Water Sewerage Waste Abatement Total 

444,825 986,231 839,614 955,639 1,044,690 658,034 985,948 40,612 150,619 74,275 1,432,492 4,105 840,000 1,191,726 

444,825 2,030,921 839,614 955,639 25,034 683,068 985,948 40,612 27,000 251,894 241,432 1,673,924 4,105 2,031,726 

127,581 (336,123) (11,292) 
11,963 (2,572) 8,670 3,826 14,324 157,694 (338,695) 8,670 (11.292) Net nonoperating income (expense) $ (219 

See Independent Auditor's Report 

(18 



 
St. John the Baptist Parish Council LaPlace, Louisiana Enterprise Funds Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Retained Earnings (continued) For the Year Ended December 31, 1997 

Operating transfers in (out) Operating transfers in Operating transfers out Net operating transfers Net income (loss) Amortization of contributed capital Decrease(increase) in reserved retained earnings 

6/30/97 12/31/97 12/31/97 12/31/97 Gas and Solid Mosquito Water Sewerage Waste Abatement Total 

910,159 (1,228,322) (6,405) 519,383 1,023,574 
Reserved retained earnings, beginning of year 1,009,424 264,723 
Unreserved retained earnings, beginning of year Retained earnings, end of year 

See Independent Auditor's Report 

46,321 (278,247) 1,542,957 
1,274,147 

3,027,438 2,215,414 291,568 338,429 5,872,849 $ 5,466,404 $ 2,275,389 $ 285,163 $ 384,750 $ 8,411,706 
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Cash flows from operating activities Operating income (loss) Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss) to net cash provided by operating activities: Depreciation Changes in assets and liabilities: Accounts receivable Due from other funds Other receivables Due from other governments Inventory Accounts and salaries payable Due to other funds Due to other governments Accrued expenses Deposits payable Interest payable Other payable Net cash provided (used) by operating activities 
Cash flows from noneapital financing activities Operating transfers in Operating transfers out Net cash provided (used) by noncapital financing activities 

See Independent Auditor's Report 

St. John the Baptist Parish Council LaPlace. Louisiana Enterprise Funds Combining Statement of Cash Flows For the Year Ended December 31, 1997 
6/30/97 Gas and Water 12/31/97 Sewerage 12/31/97 12/31/97 Solid Mosquito Waste Abatement Total 
$ 644,024 $ (1,747,443) $ 74,769 $ 44,997 $ (983,653) 
840,000 (178,256) (4,470) 1,095 (14,410) 28,744 
64,119 (1,267) 10,000 

1,191,726 (386,128) 441,508 (187) 
13,739 2,173 

6,842 (14,242) 
1,912 
(662) (1,5o5) 
(1,401) 2,556 

2,031,726 (558,204) 425,761 (4,657) 1,095 (160) 33,473 
64,119 (1,267) 10,000 

1,389,579 (484,612) 69,281 43,985 1,018,233 
500,000 (14,031) 506,500 (5,440) 1,006,500 (85,000) (13,000) (117,471) 
$ 485,969 $ 501,060 $ (85,000) $ (13,000) $ 889,029 



 

St. John the Baptist Parish Council LaPlace, Louisiana Enterprise Funds Combining Statement of Cash Flows (continued) For the Year Ended December 31, 1997 

Cash flows from capital and related financing activities Changes in other assets Proceeds from bond issue Acquisition of capital assets Gain from sale of fixed assets Increase in Contributed capital Repayment of loans payable Amortization of bond debt expense and bond discount Bonds payable Principal payments Interest payments 

6/30/97 Gas and Water 
12/31/97 
Sewerage 
12/31/97 12/31/97 Solid Mosquito Waste Abatement Total 

$ 9,875 $ (394,536) 59,000 (9,746) (11,292) (271,000) 036,123) (2,572) 

9,875 (3,370,140) 8,670 2,921,902 (9,746) (11,292) (271,000) 038,695) Net cash provided (used) by capital and related financing activities (953,822) (106,604) (1,060,426 Cash flows from investing activities Interest income Sale of investment securities Purchase of investment securities Net cash provided (used) by investing activities (847,336) 62,214 3,826 (34,688) (815,984 Netincrease(deerease)in cash Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year Cash and cash equivalents, end of year Reconciliation to Balance Sheet Unrestricted cash and cash equivalents Restricted cash and cash equivalents Total cash and cash equivalents 
See Independent Auditor's Report 

74,390 (27,942) (11,893) (3,703) 30,852 
783,866 119,884 58,682 54,544 1,016,976 
858,256 91,942 46,789 50,841 1,047,828 



St. John the Baptist Parish Council LaPlace, Louisiana Internal Service Funds Combining Balance Sheet December 31, 1997 

Assets Cash and cash equivalents Investments Accrued Interest Receivable Total assets 
Liabilities and fund equity Liabilities Accounts payable Total liabilities 
Fund equity Retained earnings Reserved Unreserved 
Total fund equity Total liabilities and fund equity 

See Independent Auditor's Report 

Group Workers Insurance Compensation Fund Fund Total 



Operating revenues Other income 

St. John the Baptist Parish Council LaPlace, Louisiana Internal Service Funds Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Reserved Retained Earnings For the Year Ended December 31, 1997 

Total operating revenues Operating expenses Insurance Administrative 
Total operating expenses Operating income (loss) Nonoperating revenues (expenses) Interest income Other 

Group Workers Insurance Compensation Fund Fund Total 

1,204 1,204 

22,148 5,272 27,420 
Net nonoperating revenue (expenses) 22,148 5,272 27,420 Operating transfers in (out) Operating transfers in Net operating transfers in (out) Net income (loss) (54,056) 32,065 (21,991) 
Retained earnings, beginning of year 476,440 99,282 575,722 
Retained earnings, end of year $ 422,384 $ 131,347 $ 553,731 

See Independent Auditor's Report 



 
St. John the Baptist Parish Council LaPlace, Louisiana Internal Service Funds Combining Statement of Cash Flows For the Year Ended December 31, 1997 

Cash flows from operating activities Operating income (loss) Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss) to net cash provided by operating activities: Changes in Assets and Liabilities: Other receivables Net cash provided (used) by operating activities Cash flows from noncapital financing activities Operating transfers in Net cash provided (used) by noncapital financing activities Cash flows from investing activities Interest income Sale of investment securities Purchase of investment securities 

Group Workers Insurance Compensation Fund Fund 
$ (1,204) $ 353 $ (851) 
437 218 655 

(75,000) 26,440 (48,560) 

Net cash provided (used) by investing activities 71,086 (29,702) 41,384 Net increase (decrease) in cash Cash and cash equivalents, beginning ofyear Cash and cash equivalents, end of year 

See Independent Auditor's Report 

(4,681) (2,691) (7,372) 
6,808 9,106 15,914 $ 2,127 $ 6,415 $ 8,542 



Assets Cash and cash equivalents Investments Receivables 
Total assets Liabilities Liabilities Benefits Payable Due to other funds Accrued expenses Total liabilities 

See Independent Auditor's Report 

St. John the Baptist Parish Council LaPlace, Louisiana Agency Funds Combining Balance Sheet December 31,1997 
Permit Clearing Fire Protection Sales Tax Deferred Fund District Compensation Total 

25,155 2,157 210,020 286,466 286,466 235,175 2,157 
$ 27,312 $ 210,020 $ 286,466 $ 523,798 



ST. JOHN THE BAPTIST PARISH COUNCIL LaPlace, Louisiana SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION SCHEDULE For the Year Ended December 31, 1997 
COMPENSATION PAID TO BOARD MEMBERS The schedule of compensation paid to the Parish President and Parish Councilmen is presented in compliance with House Concurrent Resolution No. 54 of the 1979 Session of the Louisiana Legislature. Compensation of the Parish Council is included in the legislative expenditures of the General Fund. In accordance with Louisiana Revised Statutes, at LSA-KS. 33:1233, the Parish Councd ha~ elected the monthly payment method of compensation. Under this method, the Councdmen receive approximately $686 per month. 

Arnold J. Labat, Parish President 
Richard D. Wolfe, Division A Duaine Duff),, Council Chairman, Division B Perry Bailey, Sr., District I Kevin Duhort, District II Clinton Perfilloux, District HI Ranney Wilson, District 1V Nickie Momceq District V Joel McTopy, District VI Steven Thornton, District VII Parish Council Total 

See Independent Auditor's Report 

$ 7,448 8,230 8,230 8,230 7,448 8,230 8,230 7,448 8,230 



SINGLE AUDIT SECTION 



REBOWE & COMPANY CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS CONSULTANTS A P~OFESSIONAL CORPORATION 3501 N. Causeway Blvd. ~ Suite 810 ~ P.O. Box 6952 ~ Metaide, LA 70009 Phone (504) 837-9116 * Fax (504) 637-0123 ~ E-mail rebowe@rebowe.com 
REPORT ON COMPLIANCE AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GO VERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS 

To the Honorable President and Members of the Cotmcil ST. JOHN ~ BAPTIST PARISH COUNCIL LaPlace, Louisiana We have audited the primary government financial statements of the ST. JOHN T/-m BAPTIST PARISH COUNCIL as of and for the year ended December 31, 1997, and have issued our report thereon dated May 8, 1998. We conducted our audit in accordance with generally accepted andmng standards and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Audm~g Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. 
Co.__mpliance As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the ST. JOHN THE BAPTIST PARISH COUNCIL'S financial statements are free of material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grants, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit and, accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed instances of noncompliance that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards, and which are reported in the accompanying Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs as items 97-1 through 97-3. nterna! Control Over Financial Reoortin~ In planning and performing our audit, we considered the ST. JOHN THE BAPTIST PARISH COUNCIL'S internal control over financial reporting in order to determine our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements and not to provide assurance on the internal control over financial reporting. However, we noted a matter involving the internal control over financial reporting and its operation that we consider to be a reportable condition. Reportable conditions involve matters coming to our attention relating to significant 



deficiencies in the design or operation of the internal control over financial reporting that, in our judgment, could adversely affect the Parish's ability to record, process, summarize, and report financial data consistent with the assertions of management in the financial statements. The reportable condition is described in the accompanying Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs as item 97-4. A material weakness is a condition in which the design or operation of one or more of the internal control components does not reduce to a relatively low level the risk that misstatements in amounts that would be material in relation to the financial statements being audited may occur and not be detected within a timely period by employees in the normal course of performing their assigned functions. We believe that the reportable condition, item 97-4, reported above is a material weakness. We also noted other matters involving the internal control over financial reporting that we have reported to management in a separate letter dated May 8, 1998. This report is intended for the information of the Council, management of the Parish, the Louisiana Legislative Auditor, and federal awarding agencies and pass-through entities. However, this report is a matter of public record and its distribution is not limited. 
May 8, 1998 



REBOWE & COMPANY CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS CONSULTANTS A PROFESSIONAL CORPORATION 3501 N. Causeway Blvd. ~ Suite 610 ~ P.O. Box 6952 ~ Metairie, LA 70009 Phone (504) 837-9116 ~ Fax (504) 837-0123 ~ E-mail rebowe@rebowe.com 

REPORT ON COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS APPLICABLE TO EACH MAJOR PROGRAM AND INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE IN ACCORDANCE WITH OMB CIRCULAR .4,-133 
To the Honorable President and Members of the Council ST. JOHN THE BAPTIST PARISH COUNCIL LaPlace, Louisiana Compliance We have audited the compliance of the ST. JOHN THE BAPTIST PARISH COUNCIL With the types of compliance requirements described in the U.S. Office of Management and Budget (OMB) Circular A-133 Compliance Supplement that are applicable to its major federal program for the year ended December 31, 1997. ST. JOHN THE BAPTIST PARISH COUNCIL'S major federal program is identified in the summary of auditor's results section of the accompanying Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs. Compliance With the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and grants applicable to its major federal program is the responsibility of the ST. JOHN THE BAPTIST PARISH COUNCIL'S management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the ST. JOHN THE BAPTIST PARISH COUNCIL'S compliance based on our audit. We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government dudmng Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and OMB Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations. Those standards and OMB Circular A-133 require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about the ST. JOHN THE BAPTIST PARISH COUNCIL'S compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion. Our audit does not provide a legal determination on the ST. JOHN TOE BAPTIST PARISH COUNCIL'S compliance with those requirements. 
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In our opinion, the ST. JOHN TI~ BAPTIST PARISH COUNCIL complied, in all material respects, with the requirements referred to above that are applicable to its major federal program for the year ended December 31, 1997. nternal Control Over Comoliance The management of the ST. JOHN THE BAPTIST PARISH COIYNCIL is responsible for establishing and maintanung effective internal control over compliance with requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and grants applicable to federal programs. In planning and performing our audit, we considered the ST. JOHN THE BAPTIST PARISH COUNCIL'S internal control over compliance with requirements that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program in order to determine our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on compliance and to test and report on internal control over compliance in accordance with OMB Circular A-133. Our consideration of the internal control over compliance would not necessarily disclose all matters in the internal control that might be material weaknesses. A material weakness is a condition in which the design or operation of one or more of the internal control components does not reduce to a relatively low level the risk that noncomphance with applicable requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and grants that would be material in relation to a major federal program being audited may occur and not be detected wltlun a timely period by employees in the normal course of performing thetr assigned functions. We noted no matters involving the internal control over compliance and its operation that we consider to be material weaknesses. This report is intended for the information of the Council, management of the Parish, the Louisiana Legislative Auditor, and federal awarding agencies and pass-through entities. However, this report is a matter of public record and its distribution is not limited. 
May8, 1998 



ST. JOHN THE BAPTIST PARISH COUNCIL LA PLACE, LOUISIANA SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS Year Ended December 31, 1997 
A. SUMMARY OF AUDIT RESULTS 1. The auditor's report expresses an unqualified opinion on the primary govemment financial statements of the ST. JOHN Tim BAPTIST PARISH COUNCIL. A reportable condition in internal control relating to the audit of the financial statements is reported in the Report on Compliance and on lnternal Control Over Financial Reporting Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards 97-4. This item is described in Section B.(2) below as item 
3. Instances of noncompliance material to the financial statements of the ST. JOHN TItE BAPTIST PARISH COUNCIL were disclosed during the audit and are reported in the Report on Compliance and on lnternal Control Over Financial Reportage Based on an Audu of Financial Statements Performed in Accordance with Government Audmn,~, Standatd~ These items are described in Section B.(1) below as items 97-1 through 97-3 4. No reportable condmons in internal control relating to the audit of the major federal award progranl are reported in the Report on Compliance with Requirements Applicable to Each Major ProgTam and Internal Control Over Compliance in Accordance with OMB Circular A-133. 5. The auditor's report on compliance for the major federal award program administered by the ST. JOHN THE BAPTIST PARISH COUNCIL expresses an unqualified opinion. 6. The auditor's reports disclosed no findings that are required to be reported under Section .510(a) of OMB Circular A-133. 7. The following program was identified as a major program U. S. Department of Agriculture, passed through the Louisiana Department of Health and Human Resources, Office of Family Security, Food Stamp Program - CFDA 10.551 8. The threshold for distinguishing Type A and Type B programs was $300,000 9. The ST. JoHN Tim BAPTIST PARISH COUNCIL qualified as a low-risk auditee under the provisions of Section .530 of OMB Circular A-133. 
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ST. JOHN THE BAPTIST PARISH COUNCIL LA PLACE, LOUISIANA SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS (CONTINUED) Year Ended December 31, 1997 
B. FINDINGS REQUIRED TO BE REPORTED - FINANCIAL STATEMENT AUDIT 1. COMPLIANCE FINDINGS 
FINDING 97-1 - BUDGET REQUIREMENTS 
Condition Tile ST. JOHN THE BAPTIST PARISH COUNCIL did not comply with the requirements set forth in Louisiana law concerning budget amendments, specifically, the requirements of LSA- R.S. 39:1310. This statute requires the Chief Executive Officer (i.e., the Parish President) to notify the governing authority in writing when revenues are failing to meet annual budgeted amounts by five percent or more, when expenditures are exceeding annual budgeted amounts by five percent or more, and when fund balances within a fund fail to meet annual budgeted amounts by five percent or more, and requires responsive action by the governing authority under the provisions of LSA-R,S. 39:1309. For the fiscal year ending December 31, 1997, two funds of the ST. JOHN THE BAPTIST PARISH COUNCIL had actual fund balance below budgeted fund balance by five percent or more. This finding was also noted during the prior year audit, when two funds had actual fund balance below budgeted fund balance by five percent or more. 
General Fund Criminal Court Fund 

Unfavorable Buduet Actual Variance Percent Variane~ 
$ 300,861 $ 4,242 $ 255,835 $ 2,727 $ (45,026) $ (1,515) 14.97% 35.73% The above-described budget deficiencies place the ST. JOHN THE BAPTIST PARISH COUNCIL in noncompliance with the Local Government Budget Act. ManaRement Response: Management believes that budget controls have been strengthened by monthly monitoring of actual funds available for expenditures. Procedures will be adopted to insure that budget amendments are enacted timely to reflect the changes in funds available for expenditure. 



FINDING 97-2 - INVESTMENT POLICY Condition: The Parish failed to comply with Louisiana law, specifically LSA-R.S. 33:2955, which requires the Parish to adopt an investment policy which (1) reflects the mandate to manage public funds prudently; (2) places appropriate emphasis on the goals of safety of principal first, liquidity second, and yield third; and (3) establishes internal controls for any derivatives in use to ensure that the risks inherent in derivatives are adequately managed. 
Management Response: On May 12, 1998, the Parish's Chief Financial Officer introduced, for adoption by the Council, an updated investment policy that complies with the provisions of LSA-R.S. 33:2955. FINDING 97-3 - PUBLIC BID LAW 
Condition As m the prior year, management of the ST. Join_ THE BAPTIST PARISH COUNCIL did not comply vath the requirements set forth in Louisiana law concerning the use of public bids for acquisition of supplies and materials, specifically, the requirements of LSA-R.S. 38:2212. Tlus statute requires the Parish to advertise and let to the lowest responsible bidder all contracts for purchases of materials and supplies exceeding $15,000. During the year ended December 31, 1997, the Parish paid $33,349 to an aviation petroleum products supplier for products regeived after the expiration of the supplier's contract with the Parish. The contract contained no extension provisions, and no additional contract was let by public bid during 1997. This finding was reported in the prior year. 
Management Resnonse: This contract was bid in accordance with the provisions of LSA-R.S. 38:2212 in January 1998, and a new contract was subsequently awarded to the lowest bidder. 2. INTERNAL CONTROL FINDINGS FINDING 97-4 - PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT RECORDS Condition: As in the prior year, we noted that the Parish does not maintain adequate, detailed accounting records of fixed assets or fixed asset additions for assets included in its enterprise funds. In addition, we noted that the Parish did not remove assets sold during the year from the fixed assets listing for its General Fixed Assets Account Group or its enterprise funds. We consider this reportable condition to be a material weakness as defined in the Report on Compliance and on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards. 



Criteria: Generally accepted accounting principles and Louisiana law, at LSA-R.S 24:545(]3)(I), require government agencies to maintain accurate, detailed accounting records of fixed assets. Effect: Failure to maintain current and accurate records of fixed assets limits the Parish's ability to safeguard those assets against loss. Cause: Responsibility for maintaining the property and equipment records has rotated through several different employees with varying levels of training during recent years. The Parish has not taken a physical inventory of property and equipment since 1994, and has not reconciled a physical inventory of property and equipment to its accounting records since prior to 1994. 
An Accounting Department employee has been assigned the task of maintaining the fixed asset listing in the current year. She will record all asset additions and disposals and insure the accuracy of this listing. 

C. FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS FOR FEDERAL AWARDS There were no audit findings as defined in Section .510(a) of OMB Circular A-133 that are required to be reported in this section of the report. 
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ST. JOHN THE BAPTIST PARISH COUNCIL LA PLACE, LOUISIANA SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS Year Ended December 31, 1997 
A. COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS 
FINDING 96-1 -- BUDGET REQUIREMENTS Condlhon The Parish failed to comply with the provisions of Louisiana law, specifically LSA-R.S. 39:13 I0. Two funds had revenues that failed to meet budgeted amounts by five percent or more, five funds had expenditures that exceeded annual budgeted amounts by five percent or more, and two funds had fund balances that failed to meet ammal budgeted amounts by five percent or more. Additionally, the Parish failed to comply with LSA-R.S. 39:1306 for its Gas and Water Enterprise Fund. The statute requires publication of budget notices in the official journal of the Parish ten days prior to the required public hearing on the budget. The Parish published the notification six days prior to the hearing. Current Status: For the year ending December 31, 1997, the Parish's General fund and Criminal Court Fund had actual fund balances that were less than the budgeted fund balance by five percent or more, as described in the 1997 Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs. 
FINDING 96-2 - SECURITY FOR DEPOSITS Condition: The Parish failed to comply with the provisions of Louisiana law, specifically LSA-R.S. 39:1225. The law requires that depository banks provide securities or other collateral for all deposits of local government entities. During three months of 1996, one financial institution did not provide securities to collateralize one hundred percent of the Parish's deposits in that institution. 
Current Status: During 1997, the Parish's depository banks maintained adequate insurance or collateral for all deposits of the Parish. Accordingly, this timing is cleared in 1997. 
FINDING 96-3 - PUBLIC BID LAW Condition: The Parish failed to comply with the provisions of Louisiana law, specifically LSA-R.S 38:2212. The Public Bid Law requires advertisement ofaU contracts for purchases of 

71 



materials and supplies exceeding $15,000. The Parish awarded two contracts for the purchase of petroleum products and aviation fuel from vendors in amounts exceeding $15,000 through telephone price quotations, but did not publish the notice required by the Public Bid Law. 
Current Status: During the year ended December 31, 1997, the Parish bid and awarded the petroleum products contract described above in compliance with LSA-R.S. 38:2212. The aviation fuel contract was bid in December 1997, and awarded in January 1998. This contract is included in the 1997 Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs. FINDING 96-4 - BOND REQUIREMENTS Condition.;. The Parish failed to comply with the bond covenants governing its Road and D~ amage Sales Tax Bonds, Series 1990. The sinking and reserve funds required by this issue were underfimded by a total of $22,559 at December 31, 1996. Current Status: During 1997, the Parish transferred funds to cover the shortfalls in these debt service funds. We noted no additional violations of bond covenants as a result of our testing in the current year. Accordingly, this finding is cleared in 1997. 
B. INTERNAL CONTROL FINDINGS REPORTABLE CONDITION 96-1 - ACCOUNTING PROCEDURES (COMPUTER SYSTEM) Condition As a result of the Parish using multiple accounting systems to maintain its funds, we noted numerous differences in interfund payables, receivables, and transfers at year end. Current Status: The Parish is currently in the process of combining all funds on to one accounting system. At December 31, 1997, all interfund payables, receivables, and transfers were substantially in balance. Accordingly, this finding is cleared in 1997. REPORTABLE CONDITION 96-2 - ACCOUterING RECORDS (AccoUNTS PAYABLE) Condition: As a result of employees not performing periodic reconciliations of certain subledgers, we noted that two out of thirteen accounts payable subledgers did not reconcile to the fund general ledgers by a total of $23,700. 
Current Status At December 31, 1997, all accounts payable subledgers substantially balanced to the general ledgers. Accordingly, this finding is cleared tn 1997. 



MATERIAL WEAKNESS 96-1 - ACCOUNTING RECORDS (DEFERRED COMPENSATION) Condition: The Parish failed to record the balances in its Internal Revenue Code Section 457 deferred compensation plan as an agency fund in its financial statements at December 31, 1996, as required by GASB Statement No. 2, Financial Reporting of Deferred Compensation Plans Adopted Under the Provisions of Internal Revenue Code Section 457. As a result, the agency fund assets and liabilities were understated by a total of $259, 237. Current Status: The finding has been resolved. The Plan assets, liabilities, and activity are recorded properly at December 31, 1997. MATERIAL WEAKNESS 96-2 - ACCOUNTING RECORDS (PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT) Condition: We noted that the Parish does not maintain adequate, detailed accounting records of fixed assets or fixed asset additions for assets included in its enterprise funds. In addition, we noted that the Parish did not remove assets sold during the year from the fixed assets listing for its General Fixed Assets Account Group. The Parish received $16,900 in 1996 from the sale of certain assets, but we were unable to determine the cost of the assets or whether they were included in the fixed assets listing. 
Current Status: No significant improvements have been made in the maintenance and recording of fixed asset records. This finding is included in the 1997 Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs. MATERIAL WEAKNESS 96-3 - ACCOUNTING POLICY (SEGREGATION OF DUTIES) Condition: We noted that the employee who maintained accounting records and performed bank reconciliations for the Recreation Fund also received and deposited cash receipts for this fund. Furthermore, supporting documentation related to cash receipts from the Recreation Department was inadequate; therefore, we were unable to satisfy ourselves regarding the reasonableness of recorded revenues. We have determined that any misstatement would be immaterial to the financial statements of the Parish. 
Current Status: The duties formerly assigned to this employee have been divided among other employees Accordingly, this finding is cleared in 1997. C. FINDINGS RELATED TO FEDERAL AWARD PROGRAMS There were no audit findings related to federal award programs for the year ended December 31, 1996, that were required to be reported under the provisions of generally accepted government auditing standards or the provisions of OMB Circular A-128, Audits of State and Local Governments. 



ST. JOHN THE BAPTIST PARISH COUNCIL LA PLACE~ LOUISIANA CORRECTIVE ACTION PLAN Year Ended December 31, 1997 
Management's corrective actions are described in the management response to each of the auditor's compliance and internal control findmg~ 

74 



Federal Grantor/ Pass-Through Grantors/ Proaram Title 

ST. JOHN THE BAPTIST PARISH COUNCIL LA PLACE, LOUISIANA SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS Year Ended December 31, 1997 
Federal CFDA Number 

Cash or Accnled Cash or Accrued Program or (Deferred) (Defected) Grant Award Revenue Revenue Expenditures/ Revenue Number Amount 1/1/97 Reeo~tized Disbursements 12/31/97 U.S. Federal Emergency Management A~encv Passed through the Louisiana Department of Military Affairs Total U.S. Federal Emergency Management Agency U.S. Delmrtment of A2ri Passed through the Louisiana Depaflment of Health and Human Resources: Office of Family Seourity - Food Stamp Program * Office of Family Security - Food Stamp Program - Administrative Costs * Summer Food Service Program Total U.S. Department of Agricultore U.S. Department of Health and Human Services passed through Louisiana Department of Health mad Hospitals - Oltiee of Alcohol and Drug Abuse Youth Prevention Program 
Total U.S. Depaflment of Health and Human Services Total federal awards * Major program 

83.534 EMT-9%PA- 0002 $'27,077 

10.551 
10.551 10.558 

$1,563,750 
$29,519 $63,056 

93.959 DHH.58714 $5%037 DOA 351 - 70012 

$27.077 $27.077 27.077 27.077 

17.49 

NOTE A - BASIS OF ACCOUNTING The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards has been prepared using the modified accrtml basis of accounting, in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. The modified accrual basis of accounting has also been used in presenting the financial statements, as disclosed in Note 1. NOTE B - PASS-THROUGH AWARDS The ST. JOHN THE BAPTIST PARISH CO/dNCIL did not pass-through any ff its federal awards to a subrecipient during the year ended December 31, 1997. NOTE C - NON-CASH ASSISTANCE Food stamps totaling $3,038,299, which constitute non-cash federal assistance, were distributed during the year ended December 31. 1997. 
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ST. JOHN THE BAPTIST PARISH COUNCIL MEMORANDUM OF ADVISORY COMMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDING DECEMBER 31, 1997 

REBOWE & COMPANY CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS A PROFESSIONAL ACCOUNTING CORPORATION 



AUDITOR'S REPORT 
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May 8, 1998 

REBOWE & COMPANY CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS CONSULTANTS A PROFESSIONAL CORPORATION 3501 N. Causeway Blvd. , Suite 810 ~ P.O. Box 6952 ~ Metairie, LA 70009 Phone (504) 837-9116 ~ Fax (504) 837-0123 ~ E-mail rebowe@rebowe.com 

To the Honorable President and Members of the Council St. John the Baptist Parish, State of Louisiana LaPlace, Louisiana We have audited the primary government financial statements of the ST. JOHN Trm BAPTIST PARISH COUNCIL, State of Lonisiana for the year ended December 31, 1997, and have issued our report thereon dated May 8, 1998. As part of our audit, we considered the Parish's internal control over financial reporting in order to determine the nature, timing and extent of our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the general purpose financial statements and not to provide assurance on the internal control structure. Our consideration of the internal control structure has been reported on in a separately issued report entitled Independent Auditors' Report on Compliance and on hTternal Control Over Financial Reporting Based on an Audit of Ftin~ncial Statements Performed in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards dated May 8, 1998. This memorandum summarizes various other matters which have come to our attention. While not involving reportable conditions, these matters do present opportunities for strengthening the internal control over financial reporting and improving the operating efficiency of the Parish. We have discussed our comments and recommendations vath various Parish personnel and have included their responses. We will be pleased to discuss these comments with you in further detail at your convenience, perform any additional analysis of these matters, or assist you in implementing our recommendations. Sincerely, 



OBSERVATIONS, RECOMMENDATIONS, AND MANAGEMENT RESPONSES 

Management has met with representatives from First National Bank of Commerce several times; however, the consolidation of cash accounts has not occurred as of the date of this letter. Recornmendatton The Pansh's fiscal agent bank has the resources to create a pooled cash account for the Parish. Such an account would allow the Parish to reduce its cash accounts with a corresponding decline in the number of bank account reconciliations and an increase in interest income. Management Response: We are currently m the process of establishing pooled cash accounts in the current year. We will determine those accounts which are not legally required and combine them into pooled accounts. Observation B: When paying invoices attributable to more than one fund, the Parish prepares a check for each fund responsible for a portion of the invoice. As a result, we noted instances in which up to seven checks were prepared to pay one invoice. Recommendation~ Using interfund journal entries to record these expenditures would reduce the number of checks prepared by Parish personnel and reduce the possibility of errors in the payment of invoices, Management Response: We will consider implementation of the recommendation in the current year 

Recommendatton We recommend that the Parish amend its investment policy to allow for investments with maturities greater than one year. An investment portfolio containing both short-term and long- 
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term investment securities would enable the Parish to minimize interest rate risk and potentially earn a higher rate of return on invested funds. 
Management Response: In addition to the continued purchasing of short-term investment securities, management will begin purchasing investment securities with scheduled maturities of greater than one year. The desired result of these actions is to have a more diversified portfolio which provides a higher rate of return on invested funds. 
3. PARISH TRANSPORTATION ACT Observation As we noted m the prior year, the Louisiana Parish Transportation Act, at LSA-R.S. 48:754, requires the Parish to maintain a listing of projects planned for the coming three years. The Parish maintains a one-year listing of planned projects, as well as a listing of all projects planned in the future, but does not maintain a specific document described as a three-year plan. Recommendation: We recommend that the Parish specifically identify planned projects in the three-year format described above. Management Response: The Parish currently has a one-year and a five-year plan in effect for these projects. We will consider preparing a specific three-year plan. 
Observation: The Parish has not yet amended its deferred compensation plan to comply with Internal Revenue Code Section 457, as amended. This section requires the Parish to place the plan's assets in a trust established for the exclusive benefit of its employees by January 1, 1999. By amending the plan, the Parish's general creditors will no longer have access to the plan assets. Recommendation: We recommend that the Parish amend the deferred compensation plan in order to comply wlth IRC Section 457 no later than January 1, 1999. 
Mana,_,ement Response The Parish is currently m the process of amending the deferred compensation plan in order to comply with the revised Section 457 requirements. 
5. Bm FILEs 
The Parish's bid files do not always contain adequate documentation to evidence comphance with the Parish's procurement policies and state law. We noted several instances in which reformation 
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necessary to comply with the public bid law such as advertisements and copies of bid proposals was not included in the bid files. We also noted that several individuals were responsible for maintaining bid files, and the files were stored in numerous locations. 
Recommendation: We recommend that the Parish design a bid file checklist which lists all information and documents necessary to comply with the Pansh's procurement policies as well as pubhc bid laws. We also suggest that one person be assigned respons~bnhty for maintenance of Nd files 
Management Response: Management is currently in the process of designing and implementing a bid file checklist. The Finance Director will maintain all bid files. 
During our testing of salaries expense, we noted that overtime pay as a percentage of total wages appeared somewhat high for certain individuals. Recommendation: We recommend that the Parish perform a periodic review of overtime levels within its departments. If feasible, the Parish may consider hiring additional personnel to meet the current workload. The hiring of additional personnel may reduce total payroll expenditures by minimizing the need for overtime pay, which is paid at a rate of time and a h~. 
Management Response Management has already hired additional personnel to minimize the amount of overtime wages incurred by the Parish. 
In order to maintain an accurate listing of fixed assets, the Parish should perform a physical inventory of all moveable assets owned by the Parish at least every other year. Recommendataon The last physical inventory was performed in 1994. Since then, the Parish has not performed a physical inventory. 
Management Response: Management is currently in the process of designing a plan to conduct a fixed asset inventory 
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8. ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND PROCEDURES MANUAL 
Observation: As in the prior year, the Parish does not have an accounting policies and procedures manual defining the duties and responsibilities for each finance department employee. 
Recommendation: A formal accounting manual would clearly define employee responsibilities, aid in training employees, and provide management with a tool for monitoring employee performance. An accounting manual can also help insure consistent treatment of stmtlar accounting transactions, use of proper accounting principles, and production of accounting reports in the form desired by management. Management Response Management has begun the process of preparing a formal accounting policies and procedures manual m the current year. 


